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August 20, 2010

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Hillsborough Township

County of Somerset, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Hillsborough School
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, is hereby submitted.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented
in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30,
2010 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial
activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section
includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart and a list of
principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial statements
and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on
a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996
and the U.S. Office of Management and

Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profits
Organizations”, and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04, “Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the
internal control structure and compliance with auditor’s report on the internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

www.hillsborough.k12.nj.us



REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Hillsborough School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by
GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are included in this
report. The Hillsborough Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s
reporting entity. The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to
grade levels K through 12. These include regular, as well as special education for
handicapped youngsters. The District completed the 2009-2010 fiscal year with an
enrollment of 7,489.0 students, which is 89 students less than the previous year’s

enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over
the last twelve years:

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Percent

Enrollment Change
2009-10 7489.0 -1.19%
2008-09 7578.0 0.53%
2007-08 7538.0 -0.51%
2006-07 7577.0 -1.10%
2005-06 7661.5 0.35%
2004-05 7634.5 0.97%
2003-04 7561.0 1.15%
2002-03 7475.2 0.99%
2001-02 7402.2 3.57%
2000-01 7147.0 4.13%
1999-00 6863.7 5.33%
1998-99 6516.4

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The current state of the economy has contributed to the Hillsborough area lacking any
dramatic development or expansion. Enrollments have not noticeably increased or
decreased over the last two years. It is expected that once the recession diminishes the
development in the area will flourish.

MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Extensive discussion surrounding the current 5-year Curriculum Revision Cycle took place
due to the complete and total revision of all New Jersey Core Curriculum Content
Standards at the state level. The district conducted gap analysis on several district
curricula and revisions on other curricula utilizing the newly adopted state standards. Both
the gap analysis projects and the curriculum revisions will ensure that Hillsborough

Township Public Schools are delivering a rigorous curriculum across all content areas K-
12.

The district implemented an on-line lesson planning software solution. Training was
conducted throughout the school year with mandated implementation beginning February
1. This solution allows all administrators access to teacher’s lesson plans at any time

ensuring integration of technology and 21% century skills as well as interdisciplinary
connections.

A comprehensive professional development program continues district-wide. The Local
Professional Development Committee remains dedicated to the development of successful



professional development and mentoring action plans. The LPDC has also embraced the
SPDC philosophy put forth from the NJDOE. The district supervisory team developed,
planned, and implemented an unprecedented three-day in-service titled Hillsborough
Township Teaching and Learning Institute for approximately 800 staff members.

CEU course offerings were enriched over the 2009-2010 school year as innovative,
creative, and more rigorous classes were offered. A one week summer science institute
took place whereby approximately thirty teachers K-12 engaged in targeted science
articulation. Moreover, Professional Growth Plans for district administrators were
developed and completed in a timely manner. Additionally, staff members’ interest in
enrolling and completing graduate courses both traditionally and on-line aggressively
continues. Relationships with area colleges and universities continue to flourish. Princeton
University, The College of New Jersey, Rider University, Rutgers University, Stevens
Institute of Technology, and Raritan Valley Community College are several of the
institutions with which we maintain a collegial and professional relationship.

Professional Learning Communities have become the focus for professional development

district-wide. Shifting the paradigm from teacher focused instruction to student focused
learning is the key to student success.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets
of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance with that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general
fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments
on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as



reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as a reservation of fund balance at June 30, 2010.

6.  ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect
generally accepted accounting principals, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis

of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in “Notes to
the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2010, the District’s outstanding debt issues
included serial bonds totaling $31,570,000.00.

8.  CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large by state
statute as detailed in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted
a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories
protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(“GUDPA™). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New J ersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9.  RISK MANAGEMENT: The board carries various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and
theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

10.  OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit — State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The
accounting firm of T.M. Vrabel & Associates, LLC. was selected by the Board’s audit
committee. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also
was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04-OMB. The
auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual
fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The

auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of
the Hillsborough School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the
citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to
the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report

could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our
central office staff.

Respectfully submitted,

S

Mr. Scott Rocco Mr. Aitfan A. Mahmoud
Interim Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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T. M. Vrabel e» Associates, LLL
Accountants and Auditors

Timothy M. Vrabel, RMA, PSA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Township of Hillsborough

County of Somerset, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Hilisborough as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Township of
Hillsborough’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements
based on our audit. ’ o

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Township of Hillsborough as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 14, 2010
on our consideration of the Township of Hillsborough’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resulits of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

170 'East Main Street

‘P.O. ‘Box 541

Denwville, NJ 07834

973-625-2920 Fax: 973-625-8733
‘Email: tmvrabeldvc@optonline.net
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on page 14 through 20 and budgetary comparison information on
schedules C-1 and C-2 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation

of the required supplementary information, However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Township of Hillsborough’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section,
and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term
debt schedules and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid, and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to

the basic financial statements takeq as a whole.
V2 /)

Timothy Nf”\/rabel
Public School Accountant
License No. CS000698

Chris C. W. Hwang
Certified Public Accountant
License No. CC033704

September 14, 2010
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of The Hillsborough School District financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page 1 and the District’s financial statements, which begin on page 23.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The District’s net assets increased $2.693 million as a result of this year’s operations. Net assets of our business-type activities
decreased by $25,000 or 4.7 percent, and net assets of our governmental activities increased by $2.718 million or 7.1 percent.
e Total cost of all of the District’s programs was $114 million in 2009-2010 compared to $108 million in 2008-2009.

e During the year, the District had expenses for governmental activities that were $1.091 million less than the $114 million
generated in tax and other program revenues.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (on pages
23and 24) provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view on the District’s finances.
Fund financial statements start on page 27. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the District’s operation in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District’s most financially significant funds

Reporting the District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 16. One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is
“1s the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include ail assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most

private-sector companies. Accrual of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the District’s net assets, the difference
between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or

decreases in the District’s net assets are one indicator whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to

consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District’s property tax base, and the condition of the District’s
capital assets to assess the overall health of the District.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into two kinds of activities:

e Governmental activities: most of the District’s basic services are reported here, including general administration. Local taxes,
tuition and state and federal aid finance most of these activities.

o Business-type-activities: the District has two proprietary funds as shown on pages 32and 33.

14



Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the District’s major funds begins on page 18. The fund financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed
information about the most significant funds-not the District as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. The
District’s two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds: most of the District’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental

activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on page
29.

Proprietary funds: when the District charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides, these services are reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities. In fact, the District’s enterprise funds (a component of business type funds) are the same as the business-type
activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for
proprietary funds.

The District as Trustee

Reporting the District’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Unemployment Compensation Trust, Scholarship Funds and Agency Funds. All of the
District’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on
pages 35 and 36. We exclude these activities from the District’s other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets

to finance its operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes.

15



THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District’s combined net assets changed from a year ago, increasing from $38.961 million to $41.654 million. Looking at the net
assets and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, different stories emerge. QOur analysis below focuses
on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the District’s governmental and business-type activities as of June 30.

Table 1
Net Assets (in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activites Primary Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets 4,439 3,442 770 620 5,209 4,062
Capital assets 71,090 72,720 36 50 71,126 72,770
Total assets 75,529 76,162 806 670 76,335 76,832
Long-term debt outstanding 33,391 36,595 33,391 36,595
Other liabilities 991 1,138 299 138 1,290 1,276
Total liabilities 34,382 37,733 299 138 34,681 37,871
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of debt 39,520 37,930 36 50 39,556 37,980
Restricted 2,355 1,396 2,355 1,396
Unrestricted (deficit) (728) (897) 471 482 (257 (415)
Total net assets 41,147 38,429 507 532 41,654 38,961

Net assets of the District’s governmental activities increased by 7.1 percent. Unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be
used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal
requirements ~ increased $169,000. Restricted net assets, those restricted mainly for capital projects increased by $959,000. The
investment in capital assets, net of debt category increased by $1.59 million.
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Table 2
Changes in Net Assets (in Thousands)

Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
General revenues:

Property Taxes

Tuition

Federal and State Aid

Interest and Investment Eamings

Other General Revenues
Adjustment to Capital Assets

Total Revenues:

Program expenses including indirect expenses
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
School administrative services
General and business administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Interest on long-term debt
Business-type activities:
Food Services
Summer Enrichment

Total Expenses

Increase in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activites Primary Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
591 773 1,890 1,928 2,481 2,701
17,671 16,590 434 416 18,105 17,006
76,331 73,160 76,331 73,160
153 869 153 869
19,696 17,296 19,696 17,296
57 99 57 99
376 304 376 304
- (822) . . . (822)
114,875 108,269 2,324 2,344 117,199 111,435
46,444 47,666 46,444 47,666
11,635 10,805 11,635 10,805
9,495 5,431 9,495 5,431
2,198 2,720 2,198 2,720
17,088 16,075 17,088 16,075
5,268 5,137 5,268 5,137
3,414 3,335 3414 3,335
8,481 8,516 8,481 8,516
6,556 6,565 6,556 6,565
1,578 1,739 1,578 1,739
2,172 2,227 2,172 2,227
- - 177 201 177 201
112,157 107,989 2,349 2,428 114,506 110,417
2,718 280 5) (84) 2,693 1,018
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THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Governmental Activities

Table 3

Information below compares revenues and expenditures for all governmental fund types for 2009-2010 and 2008-2009.
(in Thousands)

Revenues by Source: 2009-2010 2008-2009 % Change
Local Tax Levy 76,916 73,871 4.12%
Tuition Charges 153 870 -82.41%
Transportation Fees 6 62 -90.32%
Interest Earned to Investments 57 99 -42.42%
Miscellaneous 420 333 26.13%
Total - Local Sources 77,552 75,235 3.08%
State Sources 30,747 31,826 -3.39%
Federal Sources 6,576 2,030 223.94%
Total Revenues 114,875 109,091 5.30%
Expenditures by Function; 2009-2010 2008-2009 % Change
Current:
Regular Instruction 32,476 33,667 -3.54%
Special education 8,561 7,716 10.95%
Other instruction 6,926 4,025 72.07%
Support Services and undistributed costs:
Tuition 2,198 2,720 -19.19%
Student and instruction related services 13,081 12,460 4.98%
School administrative services 3,678 3,639 1.07%
General and Business administrative services 2,712 2,691 0.78%
Plant operations and maintenance 7,039 7,365 -4.43%
Pupil transportation 6,228 6,302 -1.17%
Employee Benefits 24,866 22,929 8.45%
Capital Outlay 1,169 2,555 -54.25%
Debt Service:
Principal 3,220 3,200 0.63%
Interest on long-term debt 1,630 1,792 -9.04%
Total Expenditures 113,784 111,061 2.45%

The districts revenue reflects a local tax levy that is higher than the prior year due to the merger of the Millstone Board of Education
with the Hillsborough Board of Education. The tuition charges are lower this year since the Millstone Board of Education does not pay
tuition as the districts have merged. State revenue has decreased significantly which has had a dramatic impact on the delivery of
services to students. Federal Source revenue has increased as a result of a non-recurring allocation of funds via the American
Recovery Reinvestment Act.

On the expenditure side, other instruction has increased based on changes to the states chart of accounts which required the district to
separate out other instruction classified position like: ASI teachers, at risk teachers, etc...
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Business-type Activities

District’s major Enterprise Funds consist of the Food Service and Summer Enrichment Program. The basic financial statements for
the major funds are included in this report. Because the focus on business-type funds is a cost of service measurement or capital
maintenance, we have included these funds in Table 4, which demonstrates return on ending assets and return on ending net assets.

Table 4
(in Thousands)
Food Summer
Service Enrichment
Total Assets 631 175
Net Assets 444 63
Change in Net Assets 37 (62)
Return on Ending Total Assets 5.86% -35.43%
Return on Ending Net Assets 8.33% -98.41%
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
Table 5
(in Thousands)
Capital Assets at Year-end
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activites Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land Improvements 3,547 3,547 3,547 3,547
Buildings 104,824 104,132 104,824 104,132
Machinery and Equipment 4,144 3,667 264 264 4,408 3,931
Construction-in-progress - - - - - -
Subtotal 112,515 111,346 264 264 112,779 111,610
Accumulated Depreciation (41,425) (38,626) (228) (214) (41,653) (38,840)
Totals 71,090 72,720 36 50 71,126 72,770

The District’s 2010-2011 capital budget anticipates a spending level of $212,852 for capital projects. More detailed information about
the District capital assets is presented in Note 11I: C. to the basic financial statements
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DEBT

At year — end the District had total debt of $36.595 million outstanding versus $39.795 million last year —a decrease of 8.0 percent -
as shown in Table 6.

Outstanding Debt, at year —end

Table 6
(in Thousands)
Governmental
Activities
2010 2009
Serial Bonds 31,570 34,790
Compensated Absences 1,821 1,805
33,391 36,595

An analysis of District Debt is presented in Note HLD. to the basic financial statements.

BUDGETS

The variances between the originally adopted budget for the year 2009-2010, and the final budget were caused by the treatment of
encumbrances that are added to the original budget. In addition, the State pension payments, which are paid by the State on behalf of
employees are not budgeted, however they are counted as an expense in the audit .

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of
the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the Business Administrator/Board Secretary, Aiman A. Mahmoud, Hillsborough Public
School District, Hillsborough, New Jersey.
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DISTRICT — WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventory
Restricted assets:

Capital reserve account - cash
Capital assets, net (Note 1I1:C.):

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payable to federal government
Payable to state government
Bond Interest Payable
Deferred revenue
Noncurrent liabilities (Note 1V:B.):
Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 2,818,092.06 $ 684,787.93 $ 3,502,879.99
1,620,774.75 63,056.55 1,683,831.30
21,607.73 21,607.73
1.00 1.00
71,090,035.47 36,326.91 71,126,362.38
75,528,903.28 805,779.12 76,334,682.40
267,431.23 142,878.87 410,310.10
28,936.29 28,936.29
1,742.42 1,742.42
462,440.00 462,440.00
229,941.76 155,707.42 385,649.18
3,250,000.00 3,250,000.00
30,141,364.45 - 30,141,364 .45
34,381,856.15 298,586.29 34,680,442 .44
39,520,035.47 36,326.91 39,556,362.38
1.00 1.00
(462,418.13) (462,418.13)
2,817,548.80 2,817,548.80
(728,120.01) 470,865.92 (257,254.09)
$41,147,047.13 $ 507,192.83 $ 41,654,239.96
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Exhlibit B-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $3,716,319.55 $(898,249.36) § 21.87 $ 2,818,092.06
Receivables from other governments 456,905.00 1,158,694.04 1,615,599.04
Tax Levy receivable 4,999.92 4,999.92
Other - 175.79 175.79
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1.00 - - 1.00
Total Assets $4,178,22547 $ 260,620.47 $ 21.87 $ 4,438,867.81
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 26743123 % - $ - $ 267,431.23
Payable to federal government 28,936.29 28,936.29
Payable to state government 1,742.42 1,742.42
Deferred revenue - 229,941.76 229,941.76
Total Liabilities 267,431.23 260,620.47 528,051.70
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Capital reserve account 1.00 1.00
Excess surplus 2,340,449.06 2,340,449.06
Excess surplus - designated for
subsequent year's expenditures 477,099.74 477,099.74
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 1,093,244 44 1,093,244 .44
Debt service fund - 21.87 21.87
Total Fund Balances 3,910,794.24 - 21.87 3,910,816.11
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $4,178,225.47 $ 260,620.47 $ 21.87
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:
Adjustment to Debt Service Fund net assets for the
accrual of interest expense. (462,440.00)

Capital assets used in governmenta! activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost

of the assets is $112,514,802.54 and the accumulated depreciation
is $41,424,767.07.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
liabilities in the funds (see Note IV:B.)

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

27

71,090,035.47

(33,391,364.45)

$41,147,047.13



BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition charges
Transportation fees
Interest earned on investments
Miscellaneous
Total - Local Sources
State sources
Federal sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other instruction
Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
School administrative services
General and business administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated benefits
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balance—July 1

Fund Balance—June 30

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit B-2

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental

Eund Fund Eund Funds
$ 73,088,579.00 - $ 3.827,803.00 $ 76,916,382.00
152,894.02 152,894.02
5,727.20 5,727.20
57,278.05 57,278.05
376,045.10 43,898.25 - 419,943.35
73,680,523.37 43,898.25 3,827,803.00 77,552,224 .62
29,718,186.88 36,098.58 992,483.00 30,746,768.46
3,461,634.02 3,114,519.29 - 6,576,153.31
106,860,344.27 3,194,516.12 4,820,286.00 114,875,146.39
32,226,332.31 249,685.68 32,476,017.99
7.186,968.62 1,373,707.01 8,560,675.63
6,925733.39 6,925,733.39
2,198,007.39 2,198,007.39
11.853,608.50 1,127,286.60 13,080,895.10
3,678,024.09 3,678,024.09
2,711,706.38 2,711,706.38
7,039,410.68 7,039,410.68
6,228,122.01 6,228,122.01
24,657,052.42 208,668.23 24,865,720.65
933,731.85 235,168.60 1,168,900.45
3,220,000.00 3,220,000.00
- - 1,630,050.75 1,630,050.75
105,738,697.64 3,194,516.12 4,850,050.75 113,783,264.51
1,121,646.63 - (29,764.75) 1,091,881.88
1,121,646.63 - (29,764.75) 1,091,881.88
2,789,147 61 - 29,786.62 2,818,934.23
$ 3,910,794.24 - 2187 $ 3910,816.11
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Exhibit B-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Govaernmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) 1,091,881.88

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

In the statement of activites, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardiess of when due. in the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The difference
in accrued interest is an addition in the reconciliation. (+)

Interest paid 1,630,050.75
Interest accrued (1,577,657.83)

52,392.92

Capital outlays are repored in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense (2,798,526.98)
Capital outiays (exclusive of capital
lease principal payments) 1,168,800.45

PRI Mo et g

(1,629,626.53)

Adjustment to Capital Assets in accordance with physical appraisal

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas
in the governmental funds, the proceeds from a sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in
net assets will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the asset removed. () -

in the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations and
unused sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid).
When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconcitiation (-);
when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition in the recongciliation (+). (16,785.68)

Payment of long-term liability principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
jong-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Debt principal 3,220,000.00
Capital lease principal -

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue in
the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Proceeds of long-term debt -
Capital lease proceeds -

Revenues in the statement of activities which do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. (+)

Change in net assets of governmental activities 2,717,862.59

e ————————————

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Exhibit B-4
BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Food Summer
Service Enrichment Totals

$500,690.91 $175,097.02 $684,787.93
63,056.55 - 63,056.55
21,607.73 - 21,607.73

504,355.19  175,097.02 _ 769,452.21

264,150.21 264,150.21
(227,823.30) (227,823.30)
36,326.91 - 36,326.91

630,682.10 175,097.02  805,779.12

142,878.87 142,878.87
43353.02 112,35440 _ 155,707.42

186,231.89 112,354.40 298 586.29
186,231.89  112,354.40 _ 298,586.29

36,326.91 36,326.91
408,123.30 62,742.62 470,865.92

$444,45021 $ 62,74262 $507,192.83

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Program fees
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits
Management Fee
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services
Other purchased services
General supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues :

State sources:
State school funch program
State breakfast program

Federal sources:
National school lunch program
Federal breakfast program
Special mitk program
Food distribution program

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in net assets
Total Net Assets—Beginning

Total Net Assets—Ending

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-§

Buslness-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Food Summer
Service Enrichment Totals
$ 58572807 $ - $ 585,728.07
1,189,443.74 1,189,443.74
- 114,710.31 114,710.31
1,775,171.81 114,710.31 1,889,882.12
858,043.03 858,043.03
635,037.73 71,521.32 706,559.05
207,378.82 3,365.04 210,743.86
197,580.85 197,580.85
36,773.70 36,773.70
139,490.44 89,772.26 229,262.70
84,161.30 12,144.76 96,306.06
13,927.47 - 13,927.47
2,172,393.34  176,803.38  2,349,196.72
(397,221.53)  (62,093.07) (459,314.60)
26,113.18 26,113.18
1,274.40 1,274.40
282,534 .45 282,534.45
10,157.64 10,157.64
3,700.35 3,700.35
110,127.90 110,127.90
433,907.92 - 433,907.92
36,686.39 (62,093.07) (25,406.68)
407,763.82 124,835.69 532,599.51
$ 444 45021 $§ 62,742.62 $ 507,192.83

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided/(used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances—beginning of year

Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided/
(used for) operating activities:
Operating Income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided/
(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and net amortization
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue
increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments

Net cash (used for) operating activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-6

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Food Summer
Service Enrichment Totals

$1845647.95 $ 12529671 §1,970,944.66
(635,037.73)  (71,521.32)  (706,559.05)
(207,378.82) (3,365.04)  (210,743.86)
(1,173,219.40) _ (101,917.02) (1,275,136.42)
(169,988.00) __ (51,506.67) __(221,494.67)

27,387.58 27,387.58
406,520.34 406,520.34
433,907.92 - 433,907.92

263,919.92 (51,506.67) 212,413.25
245,770.99 226,603.69 472,374 68

$ 50060091 $ 175097.02 $ 684,787.93

$ (397.221.53) $ (62,093.07) § (459,314.60)

13,927.47 13,927.47
63,564.48 63,564.48
(48.95) (48.95)
6,911.66 10,586.40 17,498.06
142,878.87 - 142,878.87
227,233.53 10,586.40 237,819.93

$ (169,988.00) $ (51,506.67) § (22149467




FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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Exhibit B-7
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Private
Unemployment  Purpose
Compensation Scholarship Agency

Trust Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26276638 $ - $ 2,388,281.10
Total Assets 262,766.38 - 2,388,281.10
LIABILITIES
Payable to student groups 611,823.19
Payroll deductions and withholdings 61,562.75
Net Salaries and Wages 3,735.54
Accrued Salaries and Wages 1,669,809.71
Section 125 Plan 41,349.87
Health Benefits Reserve 0.04
Total Liabilities $ 2,388,281.10
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes $ 262,766.38
Reserved for scholarships $ -

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

Exhibit B-8

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan member

Total Contributions

Investment eamnings:
interest

Net investment earnings
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims
Transferred to Student Activity Funds

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets—beginning

Net Assets—ending

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

36

Unemployment

Private
Purpose

Compensation Scholarship

Trust Fund
$ 361,569.056 $ -
361,569.05
1,705.32
1,705.32 -
363,274.37 -
271,232.66
- 6,073.05
271,232.66 6,073.05
92,041.71 (6,073.05)
170,724 .67 6,073.05

$ 262,766.38 $

of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District is required to follow the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when
applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the District has the option to
apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the District has

chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are
discussed below.

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This Statement established new financial reporting requirements for
state and local governments throughout the United States. It required new information and restructuring much of the

information that governments had presented in the past. The District began implementing these standards for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003.

Other GASB Statements were also required to be implemented in conjunction with GASB Statements No. 34.
Therefore, the District implemented for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, and
Statement No. 38 — Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

B. Reporting Entity
The Township of Hillsborough Board of Education is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to

function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control

of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the
District.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Reporting Entity (Continued)

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is the degree of oversight
responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for
fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board exercises
operating control. The operations of the District include six elementary, one intermediate, one middle and one senior
high school located in Hillsborough, New Jersey. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not
includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements
include the financial activities of the District, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District.  Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of
the business-type activities of the District and for each function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a

particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund
is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves,

fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the
financial statements.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Note I:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The following fund types are used by the District:

Governmental Fund Types

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District:

General Fund — The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain

expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Outlay in
this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that General
Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to
fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and
to Current Expense by board resolution and, excluding equipment, with County Superintendent approval.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The
financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specially authorized by the voters
as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the

payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and
improvement programs.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Proprietary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net assets,
financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the District is that the costs (i.e.
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

The District’s Enterprise Fund are comprised of the Food Service Fund and Summer Enrichment operations.
Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their

operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been

provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Food Service Fund:

Equipment 12 Years
Light Trucks and Vehicle 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 6 Years

Fiduciary Fund Tvypes

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not
available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are
reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (Unemployment
Compensation, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a
third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address

activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide
statements.
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TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include state and federal aid, property taxes, grants entitlements and donations.

Government funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty
days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated absences which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is
required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the
end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the
fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under
the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”.

F. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt
service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office and are voted upon at the annual school election on
the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level
of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the
Jowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
NJ.AC. 620-2A.2(m)1. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. Appropriation
of prior year encumbrances in the amount of $144,868.86 were made during the year ended June 30, 2010. The

significant Budget transfers approved in the school year are presented on Exhibit C-1.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or
more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The
grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in the
balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The reconciliation of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting to the GAAP
basis of accounting is presented on Exhibit C-3.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Note I:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1.

Deposits and Investments

Deposits are cash and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued
interest. Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months are considered
to be Investments. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased
by New Jersey school districts.

Short — term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short — term interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

. Inventories

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund are recorded as
expenditure during the year of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in—first-out (FIFO)
method.

. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received.
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on the
following assets is provided on the straight — line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 years
Land Improvements 10-20 years
Other Infrastructure 10-50 years

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated.

44



BOARD OF EDUCATION
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note I Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

GASB No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the
beginning of the current year. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been

reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is su
implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006.

5. Accrued Salaries and Wages

bject to an extended

Certain District employees, who provide services to the District over the ten month academic year, have the
option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve month year. New Jersey statutes require
that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate bank account. As of June 3

amount earned by these employees but not disbursed was $1,790,231.92.

6. Compensated Absences

0, 2008, the

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fun
pay for the compensated absences. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent
fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the

fund and government — wide presentations. (See Note 1X)

7. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned. See

Note I(F) regarding the special revenue fund.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

8.

Long — term Obligations

Long — term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long — term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported
as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item
between the fund and government — wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources.

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note II: Reconciliation of Govemment Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Differences between Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets
*Total fund balances” of the District's governmental funds in B-1 differs from "net assets” of governmental activities
reported in the statement of net assets in A-1. This difference primarily results from the long - term economic focus

of the statement of net assets versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets

Statement
Total Long - term of Net
Governmental Assets Reclassifications Assets
Assets Funds Liabilities (1) and Eliminations Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,818,09206 $ - $ - 2,818,092.06
Receivables, net 1,620,774.75 1,620,774.75
Receivables from Other Governments 1.615,599.04 (1,615,595.04) -
Tax Levy Receivable 4,999.92 (4,999.92) -
Other Receivables 175.79 (175.79) -
Restricted assets:
Capital Reserve Account - cash 1.00 1.00
Capital Assets, net - 71,090,035.47 - 71,090,035.47
Total Assets $ 4,438,867.81 § 71.090,035.47 $ - 75,528,903.28
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 26743123 §$ - $ - 267,431.23
Payable to Federal Government 28,936.29 28,936.29
Payable to State Government 1,742.42 1,742.42
Bond Interest Payable 462,440.00 462,440.00
Deferred Revenue 22994176 - 229,941.76
Noncurrent Liabilities - 31,570,000.00 1,821,364.45 33,391,364.45
Total Liabilities 528,051.70 31,570,000.00 2,283,804.45 34,381,856.15
Fund Balances/Net Assets
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 39,520,035.47 39,520,035.47
Restricted for:
Capital projects 1.00 1.00
Debt service 2187 (462,440.00) (462,418.13)
Other purposes 2,817,548.80 2.817,548.80
Unrestricted 1,093,244 .44 - (1,821,364.45) (728,120.01)
Total Fund Balances/Net Assets 3,910816.11 39,520,035.47 (2,283,804 .45) 41,147,047.13
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances/Net Assets $ 443886781 $  71,090,035.47 $ - 75,528,903.28
1. When Capital Assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or
constructed, the cost of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement
of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the District as a whole.
Cost of capital assets $ 112,514,802.54

Accumulated depreciation

(41,424,767.07)

$ 71,090,03547

Long - term liabilities applicable to the District's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period

and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities - both current and long - term are reported in the
of net assets.
Serial Bonds $
Capital Leases
Compensated Absences

$

Adjustment to Debt Service Fund net assets for the
accrual of interest expence.
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Y N

Explanation of Differences between Govemmental Funds Operating Statement of Activities

NE 30, 2010

The "net change in fund balances™ for govemmental funds in B-2 differs from the “change in net assets" for governmental
activities reported in the statement of activities in A-. The difference arise primanly

of the statement of activities versus the current fi

differences is illustrated below.

focus of the g

for the long - term economic focus
| funds. The effect of the

Statement
Total Long - term Capital Long - term of
Governmental Revenue, Related Debt Reclassifications Activities
Rewve I¥ Funds Expenses (2) ltems (3} Transactions (4) and Eliminations (5} Totals
Local Tax Levy $ 7691638200 § - 1 - s - - s 76,916,382.00
Tuition Charges 152,894.02 152,894.02
Transportation Fees 5.727.20 5.721.20
{nterest Earned on Investments 57,278.05 §7,278.05
Miscellaneous 419,943.35 419,943.35
State Sources 30,746,768.46 30,746,768.46
Federal Sources 6,576,153.31 - - - - 6,576,153.31
Total 114,875,146.39 - - - - 114,875,146.39
Expenditures
Current:
Regular instruction 32,476,017.99 2,019,253 29 (48,356.83) 11,996,721.06 46,443,635.51
Special education 8,560,675.63 328,025.7% 4,662.15 2,741,524.54 11,634,888.11
Other instruction 6,925,733.39 78,421.19 (15334.57) 2,506,027.31 9,494,847.32
Support Services and undistributed costs:
Tuition 2,198,007.3% 2,198,007.3%
Student and instruction related services 13,080,895.10 40,976.6% 3,966,299.55 17,088,171.34
School admunistrative services 3,678,024.09 226,658.98 30,584.20 1,333,303.02 5,268,570.29
General and business administrative services 2,711,706.38 39,945.52 20,146.57 642,591.47 341438994
Plant operations and maintenarnce 7,039,410.68 24,983 {0 14,823.79 1,401,796.29 8,481,007.86
Pupil transportation 6,228,122.01 40,262.42 10,260.37 277,463.41 6,556,108.21
Unallocated Benefits 24,865,720 65 (24,865,720.65) -
Capital Outlay 1,168,900.45 (1,168,900.45) -
Debt Service:
Principal 3,220,000.00 (3,220,000.00) -
interest 1,630,050.75 (52,392.92) - - - 1,577,657.83
Total 113,783,264.51 {52,392.92) 1,629,626.53 (3,203,214.32) - 112,157,283 80
Other Financing Uses/Changes in Net Assets:
Adjustment to Capital Assets - .
Total - - - - - -
Net Change for the Year $ 1,091,881.88 § 52,39292 § (1,629,62653) § 3,203,21432  § $ 2,717,862.59
2. In the statement of activities, interest on long -term debt in the statement of activities is accrued, regardless of when due. In the govemmental
funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued nterest is an addition in the reconciliations. (+) $ 52,392.92
3. Capital outlays are reported in go } funds as es. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over therr estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense $ (2,798,526.98)
Capital outiays (exclusive of capital
lease principal payments) 1,168,900.45
b { 1,629,626.53)
3. In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reported, h in the g ! funds, the p d
from a sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the
asset removed. (-) s -
3. Adjustment to Capital Assets in accordance with physical appraisal 3 .
4 In the statement of activities, certain op 3 exp p d at { ) are d by the earned
during the year. In the g | funds, b for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used
(paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction n the reconciliation (-), when the paid amount
exceeds the eamed amount the differences is an addition to the reconciliation (+). s (16,785.68)
Payment of long-term liability principal is an expenditure in the govemment funds, but the payment reduces long - term liabilities i the statement of
net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.
Debt principal 3,220,000.00
Capital lease principal S,
b 3,203,214.32
4. Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the govemmental funds. They are not revenue 1n the statement of activities, issuing
debt increases long - term liabilities 1n the statement of net assets.
Proceeds of long - term debt s -
Capital lease proceeds e
$

5. Allocate Benefits expenditures
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

Note 111: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues

A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey which are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or by any
other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

NJS.A. 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Public depositories include
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which
are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal 10
five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

At June 30, 2010 the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education’s cash and cash equivalent’s amounted to
$7.,578,017.95. Of this amount, $637,837.41 was covered by federal depository insurance (F.D.1.C.) and
$6,940,180.54 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the banks as required by GUDPA

At June 30, 2010 the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education had no participation in the State of New
Jersey Cash Management Fund.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and [nvestment Risk Disclosures, requires the disclosure of bank deposits
that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education will not be

able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that may be in the possession of an
outside party.

As of June 30, 2010, none of the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education’s cash and cash equivalents
of 7,578,017.95 was exposed 10 custodial credit risk.
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Note 11I: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments

New Jersey statutes (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37) permit the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education to
purchase the following types of securities:

2. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of all its members the board of education of
any school district may use moneys which may be in hand for the purchase of the following types of securities
which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the school district;

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United
States of America;

(2) Government money market mutual funds;

(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an
act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor;

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of local unit or units
within which the school district is located;

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treasury for investment by school
district;

(6) Local government investment pools:

(7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of
P.L.1977,¢.281 (C.52:18A-90.4) or

(8) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of this
subsection a;

(b) the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section 1 of

P.L. 1970, c.236 (C.17:9-41) and for which a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

The Township of Hillsborough Board of Education had no investments as described in Note 1:G.1 at June 30,
2010.

B. Interfund Receivables and Payables

As of June 30, 2010, there were no interfund receivables and payables resulting from various interfund
transactions.
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Note I1I: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued)
C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Governmental activities:
Land Improvements $ 3,547,150.72 3% - 3 - 3 3,547,150.72
Buildings and lmprovements 104,132,109.96 692,204 .46 104,824,314.42
Machinery and Equipment 3,666,641.41 476,695.99 - 4.143,337.40
Totals at historical cost 111,345,902.09 1,168,900.45 - 112,514,802.54
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements (1,542,057.84) (177,891.75) (1,719,949.59)
Buildings and Improvements (34,838,074.07) (2,153,840.13) (36,991,914.20)
Machinery and Equipment (2,246,108.18) (466,795.10) 2,712,903.28
Total accumulated depreciation (38,626,240.09) (2,798,526.98) (1) - (41,424,767.07)
Net capital assets being depreciated 72,719,662.00 (1,629,626.53) - 71,090,035.47
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 72,719,662.00 $ (1,629,626.53) $ - $ 71,090,035.47
Business - type activities:
Equipment 3 264,150.21 $ - 3 264,150.21
Less accumulated depreciation (213,895 83) (13,92747 - (227.823.30)
Business - type activities capital assets, net $ 5025438 § (13,92747) g - $ 36,326.91

(1) Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction $ 2,019,253.29
Special Education 328,025.79
Other Instruction 78,421.19
Student and Instruction Related Services 40,976.69
School Administrative Services 226,658.98
General and Business Administrative Services 39,945.52
Plant Operations and Maintenance 24.983.10
Pupil Transportation 4026242

3 2,798,526.98
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Note IV Detailed Disclosures Regarding Liabilities and Expenses/Expenditures

A. Operating Leases

The District has commitments to lease copying equipment under operating leases which expire in 201 S.

Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 2010 were $275,132.11. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30, 2011 $ 237,072.35
June 30,2012 122,632.36
June 30,2013 23,033.60
June 30,2014 16,573.68
June 30,2015 863217
Tota! future minimum lease payments ;5____492_»_9.14_‘_9.

B. Long - Term Liabilities

Long - Term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Issued or Ending Due Within
Balance Accrued Paid Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Long - Term debt:

Serial Bonds $ 34,790,000.00 $ - $  (3,220,000.00) $ 31,570,000.00 $ 3,250,000.00
Total debt payable 34,790,000.00 - (3,220,000.00) (1) 31,570,000.00 3,250,000.00
Other liabilities:

Compensated absences 1,804,578.77 269,012.12 (252,226 .44) 1,821,364.45 164,223 .31
Total other liabilities 1,804,578.77 269,012.12 (252,226.44) (2) 1,821,364 45 164,223 31

Governmental activities
long - term liabilities $ 36,594,57877 % 269,012.12 § (3,472,22644) $ 3339136445 $ 341422331

(1) Paid by debt service fund
(2) Paid by general fund
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Note [V:Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and Expenses/Expenditures (Continued)

B. Lone—Term Liabilities (Continued)

1. Bonds Payable
Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. All
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are

general obligation bonds.

Serial Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Interest Due Maturity Amount Amount
Description Rate Date Date Issued Qutstanding
School of 1992 5.875% 8/1 2012 $13,400,000.00 $ 2,460,000.00
Refunding of 2001 5.0-
5.35% 10/1 2021 25,300,000.00  20,730,000.00
Refunding of 2007 3.87% 9/27 2021 9,095,000.00 8.380,000.00

$60,695,000.00 $31,570,000.00

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30,

2011 $ 3,250,000.00 $ 1,469,118.50 $4,719,118.50
2012 3,275,000.00 1,313,720.75 4,588,720.75
2013 3,285,000.00 1,166,293.25 4,451,293.25
2014 2,485,000.00 1,030,861.00 3,515,861.00
2015 2,515,000.00 926,805.05 3,441,805.50
2016 2.,520,000.00 783,589.00 3,303,589.00
2017 2,515,000.00 660,179.00 3,175,179.00
2018 2,510,000.00 536,862.50 3,046,862.50
2019 2,505,000.00 368,957.25 2.,873,957.25
2020 2,500,000.00 291,310.00 2,791,310.00
2021 2,490,000.00 168,474.00 2,658,474.00
2022 1,720,000.00 46,225.00 1.766.225.00

$31,570,000.00 $8,762,395.75 $40,332,395.75
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Note 1V:Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and Expenses/Expenditures (Continued)

B. Long —Term Liabilities (Continued)

2. Temporary Notes
There were no temporary notes outstanding as of June 30, 2010.

3. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2010 the Board had no authorized but not issued bonds.

4. Capital Leases Payable

There were no capital leases payables outstanding as of June 30, 2010.

54



BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Equity

A.

Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L.2004, C.73 (S1701),the designation for Reserved
Fund Balance—Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General
Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2010 is
$2.817,548.80. The reserved fund balance of $477,099.74 has been appropriated in the fiscal year 2010-2011
and $2,340,449.06 will be appropriated in the fiscal year 2011-2012.

Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Township of Hillsborough School District Board of Education
by inclusion of $1.00 on October 16, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in

subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included
in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may
also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a
separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
10 N.JS.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.13, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the
local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The June 30, 2010 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2010 is
$4,262,032.00.
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Note VI:Pension Plans

Description of Systems

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit public
employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). These systems are sponsored and administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund retirement system is
considered a cost sharing plan with special funding situations as under current statute, all employer contributions are
made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the Board and the system’s other related non-contributing employers.
The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.

The Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.JS.A.
43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time employees of the State
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-
administered retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years
of service for pension benefits and 25 years for post — retirement health care coverage.

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A.
18:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time public school employees

in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension
benefits and 25 years for post — retirement health care coverage.

According to the state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey
should any retirement systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information of each of the above systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Retirement Benefits

For PERS and TPAF employees, the benefits will be 1/55 of the average of the three highest years compensation for
each year of service. However, for PERS and TPAF who are veterans of the U.S. armed forces, the benefits will be
1/55 of final compensation for each year of service.
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Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2009, ¢.19, effective March 17, 2009 provides an option for local employers to contribute 50 percent of the normal
and accrued liability contribution amounts certified by the PERS for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. This law
also provides that a local employer may pay 100 percent of the required contribution. Such an employer will be credited
with the full payment and any such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries for PERS will
determine the unfunded liability of the retirement system, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability
contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments
over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the State fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 and will be
adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

P.L. 2007, c.103, certain parts effective July 1, 2007, provided for the following: changed employee contribution rates
of TPAF, State PERS, and DCRP to 5.5 percent of annual compensation; imposed an annual maximum wage
contribution base and a new retirement age to new employees; implemented changes to State Health Benefits Program
(SHBP) and established an employee contribution of 1.5 percent of the employee’s base salary.

P.L.2008, ¢.89, effective November 1, 2008, increased the TPAF and PERS eligibility age for unreduced benefits from
age 60 to age 62 for members hired on or after November 1, 2008; changed the early retirement provisions; increased

the minimum annual compensation required for membership eligibility for new members on or after the effective date of
this law.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation,
with the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the annual Appropriations Act. The
pension funds provide for employee contributions based on 5.5 percent for TPAF and 5.5 percent for PERS of
employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in
all Funds. The actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of living adjustments and
noncontributory death benefits in the TPAF and PERS. In the PERS and TPAF, the employer contribution includes
funding for post-retirement medical premiums.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding situations, the annual
pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost sharing multi-employer defined
benefit pension plan, annual pension cost equals contributions made.
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Pension Plans (Continued)

Contributions — Actual

The District’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $65,912,334.21 and covered payroll was
$52.260,418.00 for TPAF and $9,191,111.00 for PERS. Contributions to the TPAF and the PERS for the years
ended June 30, 2008, 2009 and 2010 made by the employees, the Board, and the State of New Jersey on behalf of the
Board were as follows:

Percent of Percent of
Covered Covered

TPAF Payroll PERS Payroll

Employees 6/30/08 2,673,753.09 5.56% 494,976.49 5.64%

6/30/09 2,809,712.74 5.57% 520,187.73 5.65%

6/30/10 2,895,596.06 5.54% 512,346.02 5.57%

Board of Education 6/30/08 N/A N/A 528,528.80 6.02%

6/30/09 N/A N/A 734,310.00 7.98%

6/30/10 N/A N/A 526,238.00 5.73%
State of New Jersey 6/30/08 5,609,240.00 11.65% N/A N/A
6/30/09 3,220,654.00 6.38% N/A N/A
6/30/10 3,408,795.00 6.52% N/A N/A

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $3,951,743 .88 during the year
ended June 30, 2010 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on
their base salaries. This amount and the State of New Jersey’s Contribution to the TPAF have been included in the
basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedule — General Fund as a revenue and expenditure in
accordance with GASB 24.
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Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

P L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, ¢.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund and the Public Employees’
Retirement System, respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate
the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retired
educational employees. As of June 30, 2009, there were 84,590 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits
and the state contributed $837.7 million on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by
the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding
basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c.126 which provides free health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25

years of service. The State paid $116.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 13,320 eligible retired members in
Fiscal Year 2009,

Risk Management

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment
Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursemnent Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to0
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

The following table is a summary of district contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the state for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the district’s trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Year District Employee Amount Ending
Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2009-2010 $ -0- $361,569.05 $271,232.61 $262,766.38
2008-2009 -0- Not Available Not Available 170,724.67
2007-2008 -0- Not Available Not Available 169,337.84

The Township of Hillsborough School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Board Association Insurance Group (the “Group”™).

The Group is both an insured and self-administered group of school districts established for the purpose of providing
certain low-cost workers’ compensation coverage for member school districts in order to keep local property taxes at
a minimum. The District pays an annual assessment to the Group and should it be determined that payments received
by the Group are deficient, additional assessments may be levied. Additionally, the Group maintains a contract of
excess insurance with a commercial reinsuror to secure the payment of benefits.

The Township of Hillsborough School District continues to carry commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of
loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Note 1X: Compensated Absences

Note X:

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s personnel policies. In
the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for
ordinary sick pay upon retirement at the rate of one days pay for every five sick days and begin vesting with the
employee and limited by certain maximums as follows:

Vesting
Number of
Years of Service Maximum
Administrators 20 $13,500
Supervisors 20 13,500
Teachers 20 13,500
Office Staff 15 10,000
Library Staff 15 10,000
Custodial and Maintenance 15 10,000
Transportation 15 10,000
Mechanics 15 10,000

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are
reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the

benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2010, no liability existed for compensated absences in the Food Service
Fund. .

Contingent Liabilities

The Township of Hillsborough Board of Education is a defendant in several lawsuits, none of which is unusual for a
Board of Education of its size. Additional liabilities, if not covered by insurance, should not be material in amount.
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Exhibit C-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
o \
¥
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budast Transfers Budaet Actual Actusl
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
tocal Tax Levy $ 73.088579.00 $ - $ 7308857600 $ 7308857800 $ -
Tuition 85,088.00 . 85,088.00 152,884.02 88 ,808.02
Transportalion Fees 60,000.00 . 80,000.00 572720 (54,272.80)
interest Eamed on Investments - 57.278.05 §7.278.05
Miscellaneous 223,004 .00 - 223,004.00 376,045.10 153,041.10
Total - Local Sources 73,437,569.00 73,437,589.00 73,880,523.37 242,954 37
Extraordinary Aid
State Sourcas:
Equalization Akl 15,478,408.00 . 15,476,406 .00 15,502,192.00 25,788.00
Categorical Transportation Aid 2,445847.00 - 2,445.847.00 1,874,711.00 (770,938.00)
Categorical Special Education Aid 4,288,876.00 - 4,288,876.00 4,324,718.00 35,840.00
Calegorical Security Aid 590,433.00 - 590,433.00 595,321.00 4.888.00
Extraordinary Aid 233.481.00 . 236,481.00 422,319.00 182,858.00
Mon-Public Transportation Aid . 34,588.00 34,588.00
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted) - 3,408,795.00 3.408,795.00
TPAF Social Security (Reimbursed - Non-Budgeted) - . - 3,851,743 88 3.951,743.88
Total State Sources 23,040,823.00 23,040,823.00 29,014 383 88 8,873 560,88
Federal Sources:
Medicaid Reimbursement 19,170.00 - 18,170.00 25317.02 8,147.02
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act: -
Education Stabilization Fund 3,308,250.00 - 3,308,250.00 3,308,250.00 -
Govemment Services Fund 128,087.00 - 128,087.00 128,087 .00 -
Tolal - Federal Sources 345548700 3,455487.00 3,461,834.02 8,147.02
Total Revenues 89,933 870.00 99,933.879.00 107,056 541.27 7,122.662.27
EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
PreschoolKindergarten - Salaries of Teachers 110-100-101 733,238.00 {63,313.00) £69,928.00 618.320.94 51,605.08
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 120-100-101 13,257.415.00 11,354.00 13,268,768.00 13,2688,757.68 111
Grades 8-8 - Salaries of Teachers 130-100-101 7,185,884 .00 (74,998.00) 7.090,986.00 8,954,806 .49 138,089.51
Grades 8-12 - Salaries of Teachers 140-100-101 10.403,789.00 5.00 10,403,774.00 10,307.723.62 96,050.38
R lar Prog -Homs
Salaries of Teachers 150-100-101 55,887.00 . 55.887.00 47.969.97 7.717.03
P P i i Services 150-100-320 52,367.00 - 52,387.00 51,240.78 1.128.24
\ar Prog 4 ! d
General Supplies 180-100-610 867,878.00 (18.198.00} 879,877.00 849,960.08 29,716.92
Textbooks 190-100-840 126.838.00 2,000.00 128,836.00 127,462,568 1,373.44
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION 32.883,173.00 (143,151.00) 32,550,022.00 32,228.332.31 323.889.89

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Leaming and/or Language Disabilities;

Salaries of Teachers 204-100-101 1.547.880.00 - 1,547.680.00 1.017.883.34 526,996.68

Other Salaties for instruction 204-100-108 251,056.00 - 251,068.00 248.474.08 2.581.94

General Supplies 204-100-810 18,200.00 {2,000.00) 17.200.00 11,547.07 585203

Textbooks 204-100-840 3,400.00 - 3,400.00 880.92 2,519.08
Total | ing and/or L i 1,821,336.00 {2,000.00) 1,819,336.00 1,278,565.38 540,750.81
Behavioral Disabiiities:

Salaries of Teachers 209-100-101 73,870 00 . 73,870.00 71.125.75 2,744 25
Total Behavioral Disabliities 1387000 . 73.870.00 71,126,75 2,744.25
Rezource Room/Resource Center: R

Salaries of Teachers 213-100-101 5,340,178.00 2.00 5,340,180.00 5246 913.77 93,268.23

General Supplies 213-100-810 42,425.00 {1.300.00) 41,125.00 32,008.38 9,026.681

Textbooks 213-100-840 10,400.00 {2,500.00) 7.800.00 3328.02 4,571.98
Total Resource Room/Resource Center 5,393 003.00 {3,798 00y 5,389.205.00 5,282 340.18 106,864 .82
Autism:

Salanes of Teachars 214-100-101 387.914.00 {359.00) 387,555.00 258.230.90 129.324.10

Other Salaries for Instruction 214-100-108 88,487.00 359.00 86,856.00 23,649.85 63,208.15

General Supplies 214-100-810 8,500.00 - 8,500.00 £.911.38 1,588.64
Total Autism 482,911.00 - 48291100 288,792.11 194,118.89
Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time:

Salaries of Teachers 215-100-101 204,873.00 {118.00) 204,755.00 179.871.50 24.783.50

Other Salaries for instruction 215-100-108 83,658.00 {2.00) 83,858.00 82,281.38 1,374.82

General Supplies 215-100-810 5,000.00 120.00 512000 3672.31 1,247.89
Total Preschool Disabliities - Part-Time 293,531.00 - 283.531.00 268,125.19 27,405 81

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 8.064.851.00 {5,798.00) 8,058.853.00 7.186,068 .82 871,884 38
Basic Skilis/Remedial - instruction

Salaries of Teachers 230-100-101 $80,950.00 {100.000.00) 880,950.00 722,358.43 158,591.57

General Supplies 230-100-810 14,500.00 - 14,500.00 - 14,500.00
Total Basic Skills/Remedial - instruction 995,450.00 {100.000.00) 895,450 00 722,358.43 173,001.57

Salaries of Teachers 240-100-101 818,275.00 . 618,275.00 568.624.23 48,850.77

General Suppiles 240-100-610 7.805.00 - 7.805.00 4,835.00 2,989.81

Texthooks 240-100-640 10.300.00 . 10,300.00 8,202.33 4,097 87
Total 8 | Ed - i 636,380.00 - 436,380.00 580,861 85 55,718.35
School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. - inst,

Salanes 401-100-100 204,958.00 23.733.00 228,691.00 228688039 081

Supplies and Materials 401-100-800 9,143.00 2,750.00 11,893.00 9,514.70 2,378 30
Total School-Spon. Cocurricular Actvts. - Inst. 214,101.00 26.483.00 240.584.00 238.205.00 2,378.91
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Other P -
Salaries
Purchased Services (300-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Total Other i Prog! - i
Summer School - instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries of Instruction
Salaries of Teacher Tutors
General Supplies
Total Summer School - instruction
Other
Salaries of Teachers
Salaries of Reading Specialists
General Supplies
Total Other

Risk P

At-Risk
PP Linhd

- instruction

Total instruction

Undi a R .
Tuition lo Other LEAs Within the Slale - Special
Tuition lo County Voc. School Dist. - Reguiar
Tuition lo County Voc. School Dist. - Special
Tuition lo CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tuition 10 Private Schools for Ihe Disabled - Within Siale
Tution 1o Priv. Sch. Disabied & Other LEAs-Spl, O/S
Tuition - Stale Faciiities
Tuition - Other
Total L d Exp -
Undistributed Expend. - Attend. & Social Work
Salaries
Total Undistributed Expend. - Attend, & Social Work
Undist. Expend. - Heaith Services
Salaries
Purchased Prafessional and Technical Services
Ofher Purchased Services (400-500 seres)
Supgpiies and Malerials
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Heaith Services
Undist. Expend, - Speech,OT PT & Related Services
Salaries of Other Professional Slaff
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Malerials
Total Undist. Expend. - Speech,OT.PT & Relaled Services
Undist. Expend, - Other Supp. Serv. Students - Extra Serv.
Salaries of Other Professional Slaff
i - i Services

Suppiies and Malerials

Total Undist, Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students - Extra Serv.

Undist. Expend. - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Slaff
Salanes of Secrstanal and Clerical Assistants
Suppiies and Malerials
Total Undist. Expend. - Guidance
Undist. Expand. - Chiid Study Team
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secrelarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services
Supplies and Malerials
Total Undist. Expend. - Child Study Team
Undist. Expend. - improvemaent of insi. Serv,
Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Slaff
Salaries of Secr and Clerical Assist,
Purchased Prof- Educalional Services
Supplies and Malerials
Total Undist. Expend. - improvement of inst. Serv.
Undist. Expend. - Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library
Salanes
Supplies and Matenals
Total Undist, Expend. - Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library
Undist. Expend. - instructional Staff Training Serv.
P F i - ional Service
Other Purchased Services (400-500 senes)
Total Undist. Expend. - instructional Staff Training Serv.
Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin.
Salaries
Legal Services
Audil Fees
Architectural/Engineering Services
Other Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Communicalions/Telephone
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Suppiies and Materials
MisceHaneous Expenditures
BOE Membership Fees
Total Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - Genersl Admin,
Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - School Admin.
Salaries of Principals/Assistan! Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salanies of Secrelarial and Clerical Assislanis
Supplies and Malerials
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - School Admin.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

9 LN P
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-1

Variance
Originat Budget Final Finai to
Budget Budget Actusl Actusl
402-100-100 $ 74285300 $  (23,86150) § 718,791.50 § 70091038 § 17,881.11
402-100-500 100,014.00 2,489.80 102,503.50 102.499.50 400
402-100-600 252,018.00 12.00 252031.00 251,778.14 254 88
1,084,688 .00 (21,380.00) 1,073,328.00 1,055,188.03 18,139.97
422-100-101 159,010.00 38,326.00 197,336.00 194,168 25 3,187.75
422-100-106 259,588.00 19,014.00 278,582.00 278,381,682 200.38
422.100-178 35,334.00 - 35,334.00 14,948.07 20,387.93
422-100-810 5,388.00 - $,388.00 382082 1,787.18
450,300.00 57,340.00 516,840.00 451.116.78 25,523.24
424-100-101 3,556,811.00 {57.340.00) 3,496,471.00 3,322,915.43 178,555.57
424-100-179 585,160.00 - 585,160.00 515,280.00 69,870.00
424-100-810 14,750.00 . 14,750.00 - 14,750.00
4.158,721.00 (57,340.00) 4,0969,381.00 3.838,205.43 261,175.57
48,314 482.00 {243,828.00) 48,070,836.00 46,330,034 32 1,731,801.88
000-100-562 184,566.00 . 184,566.00 159,188.50 26,386.50
000-100-5683 18,000.00 70,924.00 88,924.00 85,010.37 3,913.83
000-100-564 54,466.00 - 54,488.00 36.800.00 14 668.00
000-1060-585 233,8768.00 66,964.00 300,840.00 278.,080.00 22,750.00
000-100-568 2,238,982.00 {812,888.00) 1,626.004.00 1,580,220.52 85,873.48
000-100-587 28,223.00 - 28,223.00 28,223.00
000-100-588 75,720.00 - 75,720.00 75,720.00 -
000-100-569 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 : 10,000.00
2,843,833.00 {475,000.00) 2,368,833.00 2,198,007.39 170,825.81
000-211-100 141,141.00 88,981.00) §2,180.00 31.684.00 20,458.00
141,141.00 {68,981 00) 52.180.00 31,664.00 20.496.00
000-213-100 1.001.201.00 {14,561.00) 986,840.00 988,837.77 223
000-213-300 144,180.00 (81,130.00) 53,060.00 28,080.00 2497000
000-213-500 15,823.00 1.00 15,824.00 1481828 805.72
000-213-800 25,823.00 : 25,823 00 18,332.85 8.290.35
1,186.837.00 {105,690.00) 1,080,847.00 1,048,878.70 32,088 30
000-218-100 1,191,810.00 88,762.00 1,280,392.00 1,228.585.64 §1,796.38
000-216-320 99,002.00 15.187.00 114,189.00 114,117.94 71.06
000-216-800 7,215.00 - 7,215.00 8,445.56 769.44
1,297,827 .60 103,969.00 1,401,796.00 1,349,159 14 52,638.86
000-217-100 2,285429.00 224,794.00 2,510.223.00 2,510.221.33 187
000-217-320 45332.00 {922.00) 44,410.00 44 .409.92 0.08
000-217-800 7.800.00 2,354 00 10,154 .00 10,153.74 0.28
2,338,561.00 226,226 00 2,564,787 .00 2,584,784 99 201
000-218-104 1.885,714.00 {37.278.00) 1,648.438.00 1,610,295.31 38.142.89
000-218-105 215,145.00 {103,997.00) 111,148.00 71.838.54 39.509 .48
000-218-600 16,750.00 {400.00) 16,350.00 15,567 69 782.31
1,917,609.00 {141,873.00) 1,775.938.00 1,697,501 54 78,434 48
000-219-104 1,319.830.00 19,858.00 1,339.288.00 1.339.,288.00 2.00
000-219-105 181,448.00 {9.578.00) 171,868.00 171,8686.25 178
000-219-380 30,000.00 (10,080.00) 19.820.00 15,110.24 4,809.78
000-219-800 22,000.00 1,283.00 23,283.00 21,028.59 2,234 4t
1.553,078.00 1,263.00 1,554,339.00 1,547.281.08 7,047.92
000-221-102 921.306.00 9.272.00 930.578.00 830,088.38 509.64
000-221-104 81,033.00 (8.272.00) 71,761.00 32,287.19 39.473.81
000-221-105 183,883.00 - 183,883.00 164,975.87 19.007.33
000-221-320 48 451.00 - 48,451.00 12,951.88 33,499.11
000-221-600 1,358,026 .00 138,003 44 1,496,020 44 1,474 344 84 21,6884.80
2,590,798.00 138,003.44 2,728 802 44 281482795 114,174 49
000-222-100 924,248.00 - 924,249.00 919,071,893 5,177.07
000-222-800 153,.211.00 {5,885.44) 14732556 145,357 48 1,968.08
1,077,480.00 {5,885.44) 1,071,574.58 1,064,420 41 7.145.15
000-223-320 18.150.00 . 18,150.00 9,257.00 8,893.00
000-223-500 132,170.00 {1,708.00) 130,462.00 28,014.69 104 447 31
148,320 .00 {1,708.00) 148.812.00 35,271.69 111,340.31
000-230-100 542,891.00 - 542,891.00 51891427 2377873
000-230-331 189,724 .00 {1,984.00) 167,740.00 54,433.23 113,308.77
000-230-332 29,560.00 1,240.00 36,800.00 30,800.00 .
000-230-334 52.426.00 52,428.00 4271.00 48.155.00
000-230-338 21,500.00 14,638.00 36,138.00 38.137.19 081
000-230-340 24,000.00 1,708.00 25,708.00 25,707 .98 0.02
000-230-530 187.032.00 . 167,032.00 147,.404.20 19.627.80
000-230-580 259,895.00 - 259,895.00 238,295.00 23,800.00
000-230-800 28,108.00 {1,350.00) 26,758.00 13,525.78 13.23222
000-230-880 38,349.00 (1.881.00) 38.488.00 34,320.19 2,147.81
000-230-895 29,759 00 . 29,759.00 28.066.00 1,693.00
1,310,818.00 64,797 00 1,375,415.00 1,129 874 84 245,540.18
000-240-103 2,145,788.00 (188,841.00) 1,956,945.00 1,827,175.28 129.769.74
000-240-104 £39,581.00 28,486.00 666,067.00 668,068 .49 0.51
000-240-105 766,252.00 224,036.00 9980,288.00 990,185.85 122.15
000-240-800 201,008.00 (4.080.00) 196.846.00 194,818 46 2,328.51
3,752.825.00 57.621.00 3.810,246.00 3,678,024 09 13222191
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Undist. Expend. - Centrai School Admin,
Salarnies

Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Central School Admin.
Undist. Expend. - Technology Admin.
Salaries
Purchased Technical Services

Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. for 8chool Facilities
Salaries
Cleaning, Repalr and Maintenance Services
General Supplies
Total Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. for School Facllities
Undist. Expend. - Custodial Services
Salaries
Salanies of Non-instructional Aldes
P d F i and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance
General Supplies
Energy (Natural Gas)
Energy (Electricity)
Total Undist, Expend. - Custodial Services
Undist. Expend. - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplles
Total Undist. Expend. - Care and Upkesp of Grounds
Undist. Expend. - Security
General Supplies
Total Undist. Expend. - Security
Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Serv.
Salaries of Non-instructional Aides
Salaries for Pupil Trans. (Between Home & School) - Regular
Salaries for Pupil Trans. (Between Home & School) - Speclal
Salaries for Pupil Trans. (Between Home & School) - NonPublic
Cither Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Contracted Services - Ald in Lieu of Payments-NonPublic Students
Coniracted Services (Between Home and School) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Between Home and School) - Join Agreements
Contracted Services (Special Educalion Students) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Special i d « Joint Agl t
Contracted Services (Speclal Education Students) - ESCs

Serv! - P

Transportation Supplies
Miscelianeous Expenditures
Totai Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Serv,

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular
Workmen's Compensation
Heatth Benefits
Tuiillon Reimbursement
Other Employee Benefits
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
On-behalf TPAF penslon Contributions {non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (non-budgeted)
TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

¥
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

000-251-100
000-251-330
000-251-340
000-251-582
000-251-600

000-252-100
000-252-340

000-261-t00
000-261-420
000-261-810

000-262-100
000-262-107
000-282-300
000-262-420
000-262-480
000-282-520
000-262-810
000-262-821
000-262-822

000-263-100
000-283-420
000-263-810

000-266-810

000-270-107
000-270-180
000-270-161
000-270-183
000-270-380
000-270-420
000-270-503
000-270-511
000-270-512
000-270-513
000-270-5t4
000-270-515
000-270-518
000-270-583
000-270-815
000-270-800

000-291-220
000-291-241
000-291-280
000-291-270
000-291-280
000-281-290

Exhibit C-1

Variance
Originat Budget Flnai Finat 1o
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actusi
$ 84328400 § 5300 § 84333700 § 84333486 § 234
10,000.00 . 10,000.00 9.882.00 118.00
81.002.00 (81.092.00) .
286,881.00 138,002.00 422973.00 266,269 40 158,703.60
19,121.00 . 19.121.00 17,565.84 155518
1,220,378.00 75,053.00 1,205431.00 1,137,061.90 158,379.10
325,531.00 (8.000.00) 317,531.00 318,595.24 35,76
137,840.00 17,500.00 155 440.00 128 184 40 27,255.60
483,471.00 9.500.00 472,971.00 444,779,684 28,191.38
70,043.00 - 70,043.00 87,018.42 3,024.58
193,780.00 89,156.00 282,938.00 253,416.89 2851911
135,865.00 (1,904.00) 133,961.00 124 447.38 951361
399,688.00 87,252.00 488,840.00 444,882.70 42,057.30
3,071,047.00 (171.874.00) 2,899,373.00 2,899,354.60 18.40
387,157.00 35,145.00 422,302.00 414,839.44 7462.56
486,924.00 11,288.00 408,210.00 498,225.50 1.984.50
124,755.00 (1,635.00) 123,120.00 117,991.78 512822
290,349.00 (7,667.00) 282,682.00 276,366.83 8.315.37
149.412.00 - 149,412.00 106.,043.00 43,369.00
212,800.00 (23t.00) 212,366.00 189,707.23 22,881.77
506,808.00 - 506,808.00 253,742.15 253,095.85
1,604,900.00 - 1,604 ,800.00 1,400,421 .08 204,478.92
6,833,952.00 (134,776.00) 8,699,176.00 8.154,661.41 544,514.59
317,224.00 - 317,224.00 281,126.04 36,007.96
46.675.00 - 48,975.00 49,80243 82.57
85,825.00 - 85,825.00 8542013 195.87
452,824.00 . 452,824.00 418 447 80 36,378 40
18.400.00 7,059.00 23.459.00 23.418.97 40.03
16,400.00 7,050.00 23,459.00 2341897 40.03
144.810.00 (50,000.00) 94,810.00 88,557.40 8.252.80
268.183.00 (3,070.00) 265,113.00 194,143.55 70,969 45
202,751.00 149.455.00 442,208.00 442,20415 185
9.546.00 - 9,548.00 5,548,00
4.600.00 - 4,600.00 2,450.00 2.150.00
2,500.00 - 2,500.00 1,301.72 1,196.28
194,649.00 (28,770.00) 165,879.00 144,956,668 20,922.34
3,663,524.00 - 3,663.524.00 3404,504.45 258,929.55
332,086.00 37,137.00 369,223.00 389,180.98 42.02
5,360.00 - 5,360.00 2,059.80 3,300.10
$80,828.00 . 980,828.00 969,833.80 0.994.20
20,800.00 . 20,800.00 10.448.73 10,351.27
467,918.00 - 467,918.00 457,540.83 1037517
47.442.00 149,00 47,591.00 47.591.00 -
15,000.00 2,420.00 17.420.00 17,388.99 31.01
75,000.00 870.00 75,870.00 75,869 85 015
6,524,995.00 108,191.00 6,633.186.00 §,228,122.01 405,063.99
704,395.00 338,721.00 1.043,118.00 1,020,338.77 2277723
526,238.00 - 526,238.00 526,238.00 .
559,744 00 (73.111.00) 488,833.00 399,745.00 86,888.00
14,877.339.00 (163,968 00) 14.713,371.00 14,713,370.37 063
369,680.00 (32,390.00) 337,290.00 337.280.82 0.18
160,063.00 139,480.00 209,532.00 299.531.58 042
17.187,459.00 208,721.00 17,408,180.00 17.296,513.54 109,866.46
3.408,795.00 (3.408,795.00)
3951,743.88 (3.951,743.88)
- . - 7,360,538.88 (7,360,538.88)
17,197,450.00 208,721.00 17,406,180.00 24.857,052.42 (7,250,872.42)
53,267 673.00 133,042.00 53,401,815.00 58,485 931 47 (5,064,318.4T)
101,562,135.00 (109.884.00) __ 101,472.251.00 __104,804,985.79 (3,332,714.79)
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CAPITAL OUTLAY

Equipment

Reguiar Programs - instruction:
Grades 8-12

uUndistributed Expenditures:
Undist. Expend.-Support Serv.-Students - Special
Undistributed Expenditures - School Admin.
Undistributed Expenditures - Admin. info. Tech.
Undistni Expy 25 - Op of Plart Services
Undistributed Expenditures - Student Transpontation.

School Buses - Special
Totai Equipment

A imith

and Ci Ser
Architectural/Engineening Services
Construction Services
Total Facllities Acquisition and Construction Services
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures .

and Other Fi
and Other f

Excess {Dsficiency) of
Over (Under) Expendi

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Baiancs, June 30

Recapituiation of Excess of Revenuas and
OtherF ing S¢ Over Exp:
and Other Financing Sources :
Adjustment for Prior Year Encumbrances
Budgeted Fund Balance

Total

Anaiysis of Fund Balance Juns 30, 2010
Reserved:
Excess Surplus (2%)
Excess Surpius (2%) - Desig d for

ing Sources
ing (Uses)

Capital Reserve Account

Unreserved:
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Undesignated

Recongciliation of Budgetary Fund Balance to GAAP Fund Baiance:

Fund Balance Junc 30, 2010

Last Two Current Year State Aid Payments Not Realized on GAAP Basis

Year's Exp

BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF HiLLSBOROUGH

Gone;al Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

140-100-730

000-218-730
000-240-730
000-252-730
000-260-730

000-270-734

000-400-334
000-400-450

Exhibit C-1

Variance
Originai Budget Final Final to
Budget Transters Bugdget Actual Actual
$ 15,200.00 § - $ 1920000 § 1261460 §$ 8,585.40
6,480.00 - 6,460.00 5,480.00 980.00
97.584.00 - 97.584.00 24,186.00 73,408.00
178,490.00 - 178,480.00 174 671.84 3.618.06
45,884.00 49,884 .00 49,351.50 532.50
50,000.00 (50,000.00) - - -
351,744.00 {118.00) 351,628.00 266,304 04 85323.96
45,000.00 - 45,000.00 45,000.00
455,000.00 254.868.88 709,868.88 867,427 81 4244105
500,000.00 254,868.86 764,868 .86 587.427.81 87,441.05
851,744 .00 254,752,868 1,106,496.86 $33,731.85 172,765.01
102,433,879.00 144,868.86 102,578,747.86 105,736,697 64 {3,158,948.76)
{2,500,000.00) {144,868.86) {2,644 866 86) 1,317,843.83 3,082.71249
(2,500,000.00) (144,868.86) {2,644 868.66) 1,317,843.63 3,862,712.49
5,207,613.81 - 5,207.613.61 §,207,613.61 -
$ 270761381 § (144.66880) § 2,562,74475 § §,525,457.24 § 396271249
- $ (144,868.86) $ {144,568.668) $ (144,866.86) $ -
{2,500,000.00) - {2,500,000.00) 1,482,712 48 3,962.712.48
$  (250000000) § (14486886 $ _ (2 844,868.86) $ 1,317,843.63 $ 396271249
2,340,448.08
477.008.74
1.00
1,522,900.26
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$ 8,525,457 .24
$ 8,525 ,457.24
2 814,663.00



REVENUES:
Federal Sources:

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:
Education Stabilization Fund
Government Services Fund

Total - Federal Sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current Expense:

Regular Programs - Instruction

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:
Education Stabilization Fund

Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers

Government Services Fund
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION
Undist. Expend. - Guidance

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

120-100-101
130-100-101
140-100-101

140-100-101

000-218-104

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
American Recovery and Relnvestment Act - Budget and Actual

General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-1b

Variance
Originat Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
3,308,250.00 - 3,308,250.00 3,308,250.00
128,067.00 - 128,067.00 128,067.00 -
3,436,317.00 - 3,436,317.00 3,436,317.00 -
3,436,317.00 - 3,436317.00 3,438,317.00 -
581,130.00 581,130.00 581,130.00
874,002.50 874,002.50 874,002.50
1,780,297.50 - 1,780,297.50 1,780,297 .50 -
128,067.00 - 128,067.00 128,067.00 -
3,363.497.00 - 3,363,497.00 3,363,497.00 -
72,820.00 - 72,820.00 72,820.00 -
72,820.00 - 72,820.00 72.820.00 -
3,436,317.00 - 3,436,317.00 3,436,317.00 -
3,436,317.00 - 3,436,317.00 3,436,317.00 -
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES:

State Sources
Federal Sources
Local Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

instruction
Personal Services - Salaries
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services
Personal Services - Salaries
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services:
Buildings
Instructional Equipment
Noninstructiona! Equipment
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Total Outflows

Exhibit C-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 3488600 $ 941500 §$ 44301.00 $ 36,098.58 § 8,202.42
1,882,361.00 2503,131.00  4,385482.00 3,297,456.26 1,088,035.74
- 83,775.00 83,775.00 45,063.20 38,711.80
$1,017,247.00 $ 2,596,321.00 $4,513,568.00 $3,378618.04 $ 1,134,949.96
§ 32244200 §  48886.00 $ 371,328.00 § 322,066.08 $ 49,261.92
1,489,919.00 (294,675.00)  1,195,244.00 1,102,344.52 92,899.48
410,281.00 410,281.00 180,335.43 229,945.57

34,886.00 (23,624.00) 11,262.00 11,262.00 -
- 14,111.00 14,111.00 12,800.00 1,311.00
1,847,247.00 154,079.00  2,002,226.00 _1 ,628,808.03 373,417.97
813,197.00 813,197.00 659,557.85 153,639.15
448,163.00 448,163.00 209,387.93 238,775.07
103,370.00 103,370.00 92,983.49 10,386.51
484,898.00 484,898.00 296,695.55 188,202.45
89,626.00 89,626.00 38,564.25 51,061.75
176,644.00 176,644.00 64,228.99 112,415.01
2,115,898.00 2,115898.00 _1 ,361,418.06 754,479.94

182,000.00 182,000.00 178,000.00 -
25,227.00 25,227.00 23,235.95 1,991.05
188,217.00 188,217.00 187,156.00 1,061.00
- 395,444.00 395,444.00 388,391.95 7,052.05
1,847,247.00 2.666,321.00 _4,513,568.00 3,378,618.04 1,134,949 96

$1,847,247.00 $ 2,666,321.00 $4,513,568.00

$3,378,618.04 $ 1,134949.96
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Note to RSI
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Exhibit
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-1&C-2]

Difference - budget to GAAP:

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes
the related expense in accordance with GASB 33.

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2]
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows” from the
budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and ‘equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.
Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reporting purposes.
Net transfers (outflows) to general fund

[C-1&C-2]

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund batances - governmental funds [B-2]
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Exhibit C-3

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
$107,056,541.27 $3,378,618.04
(196,197.00)
- (184,101.92)

$106,860,344.27  $3,194516.12
$105738,697.64  $3,378618.04

(184,101.92)
$105738,697.64  $3,194516.12




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Section D

SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
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Section E

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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Exhibit E-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fisca! Year Ended June 30, 2010

State Federal Local
Total Aid Aid Aid

REVENUES

State Sources 3 36,09858 $ 3609858 $ - 3 -

Federal Sources 3,297,456.26 3,297,456.26

Local Sources 45,063.20 - - 45,063.20

Total Revenues $ 3,37861804 $ 3609858 $3297,456.26 $ 45063.20

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Personal Services - Salaries 100-100 $ 322,066.08 $ - $ 31184643 §$ 10,219.65

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 100-500 1,102,344.52 1,102,344.52

General Supplies 100-600 180,335.43 164,981.63 15,353.80

Textbooks 100-640 11,262.00 11,262.00 - -

Other Objects 100-800 12,800.00 - 12,800.00 -
Total Instruction 1,628,808.03 11,262.00 1,591,972.58 25,573.45
Support Services:

Personal Services - Salaries 200-100 659,557.85 659,557.85

Personal Services - Employee Benefits 200-200 209,387.93 209,273.18 11475

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 200-300 §2,983.49 13,356.00 75,427 .49 4,200.00

Purchased Professional - Educational Services 200-320 296,695.55 11,480.58 285,214.97

Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 200-500 38,564.25 34744 .25 3,820.00

Supplies and Materials 200-600 64,228.99 - 64,228.99 -
Total Support Services 1,361,418.06 24,836.58 1,328446.73 8,134.75
Facilities Acquisition and Const. Serv..

Buildings . 400-720 178,000.00 178,000.00 -

Instructional Equipment 400-731 23,235.95 - 23,235.85 -

Noninstructional Equipment 400-732 187,156.00 - 175,801.00 11,355.00
Total Facilities Acquisition and Const. Serv. 388,391.95 - 377,036.95 11,355.00
Total Expenditures $ 337861804 $ 3609858 $ 3,297,456.26 $ 45063.20
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Section F

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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Section G

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUND
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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Section H

FIDUCIARY FUND
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Schools

Student Activity Funds:
High School
Middle School
Amsterdam
Auten Road
Hillsborough Elementary
Sunnymead
Triangle
Woodfern
Woods Road
Athletic Fund

Exhibit H-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance
Disbursements June 30, 2010

LA LS4 e

Balance Cash Cash
June 30, 2009 Receipts

A LLA-38-A4 e

$ 55877072 $ 791,324.27 % 863,378.52 $ 486,716.47

64,835.87 414 585.57 417,055.60 62,365.84
5,281.34 11,337.51 13,201.15 3,417.70
4561564 144,171.20 152,391.82 37,395.02
3,587.24 20,731.70 20,842.49 3,476.45
2,565.62 5,910.64 7,704.08 772.18
3,847.70 13,965.92 15,200.18 2,613.44
4915.91 2,939.19 5,980.65 1,874.45
13,566.08 25.972.74 26,347.18 13,191.64
- 100,828.00 100,828.00 -

$ 702,986.12 $ 1531,766.74 $ 1622,929.67 $ 611,823.19
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Exhibit H-4
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2009 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2010

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 23860004 % 32,859,948.53 $ 33,036,985.82 $ 61 ,5662.75
Net Salaries and Wages 2,191.93 42,404,583.02 42 403,039.41 3,735.54
Accrued Salaries and Wages 1,851,927.17 2,704,485.53 2,986,602.99 1,669,809.71
Building Rental Account - 102,990.00 102,890.00 -

Section 125 Plan 43,772.45 152,231.38 154,653.96 41,349.87
Health Benefits Reserve 23,626.64 729,090.58 752,717.18 0.04

$2,260,118.23 $78,953,329.04 $79,436,989.36 $ 1,776,457 91
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Section I

LONG - TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. Pursuant to State of New Jersey Department
of Education requirements issued for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, only two years statistical data

needed to be presented. Additional year’s data will be included each year thereafter until ten years of data
is presented.
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STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

Financial Trends

J-1 Net Assets by Component

J-2 Changes in Net Assets

J-3 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

J-4 Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
J-5 General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source

Revenue Capacity

J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections
Debt Capacity
J-10 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
J-11 Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
J-12 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt as of June 30
J-13 Legal Debt Margin information
Demographic and Economic Information
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics
J-15 Principal Employers
Operating Information
J-16 Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program
J-17 Operating Statistics
J-18 School Building Information
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities
J-20 Insurance Schedule

Certain Exhibits do not contain ten years of information since GASBS No. 44 was implemented as
of the fiscal year ending June 30,2006.

88



69°£5e 06’81 $ 1,009'¥24128 gEZey's9s ve § £0'090'9v9'82 $ S OSC 0615 $ OV ELZ99L8E ¢ G0v8l196'8E $ 06662 ¥S9'L ¥ $
02 280°'GE} 717096 801 {Z696.°€8¢) Tee L16954) Tecvwv Lvy) Tirzev'ely) Tzo166vib) T60 ¥52'252)
€660 V\Y 12'618'69C 10°994'¥8€'2 GLOLE'YBO'E 1€°10€'90E'E 1Z's0L'eYL'e 62'658'96€'Y 191EL'G5ET
9612110621 $ 68°09L'GVL'0CS 89'710'695'2Z § 19'099'8L2'SZ $ £6°29¥'Zv0'62 $ 06°00€'/6L'GE $  8E96'6L6'LE ¢ 9ETIC'9SS'6E $
ceyze'ls9  $ Do zi0.c9 § _EYIEV 069 3 10809861 S 5/ 1588/5 § _156.8919 S loebg2es $ _£81261 09 $
118005 ¥1'955'8¥5 201 16'v19 VO'EvLoEd $0°28G 05 6G GEE 2SS cLGre'ZsYy Z6'G98'0LY
LLEpll8  § 9L'Ss0°68 ¢ WO9v'sL ¢ 90698'}9 ¢ 1.692'8Y ¢ TEEYS'VY ¢  8e¥$52'08 ¢  1692€9€ $
0625264 L1 $ 17886 98V'02% 56066 V/8'EC $ o6 Gy V84T $ 22 6.v'eZELE § 69 £EL'6yL'8E 7o 181 627 8E §  _ELLVOLVLIY $
{55666 vEP) {25 965 66V {6 12L866) TvE099€68) T/c'920'8.6) Tocges Gel) gL 9eE’L68) Troozv'ezl)
£2°660'vLY 1,°618'692 10°994'¥8E€'C G1'9LE'¥80'E 1€ 10€'90€'E LZ'S0L'TYL'E 62'658'96€"L 19°1E1'GGE'T
cgeZr'elsLL s £1°60L'969'0Z$ [Tzss'e8v'e § 65'66.'959'ST $ z2'961'v66'8Z $ y0'21G1'2EL'SE $§ 00'299'626'2€ §  L¥'GE0°0Z5'6E $
£002 ¥002 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0102
,Om aunf mc_ucm JBOA 1eostd
paypneun
(Bununcode Jo SIseq eniooe)
siea ) (eosid wbia 1se

-1 Haux3

jusuodwiod At S19SSY 19N

HONOWOESTIH 40 dIHSNMOL

NOILY2Na3 40 qavo8

$pJ0921 IS 192IN0S

S}95SE 18U JOUISIP [BI0L
pajoIsaun
pajoLIsay
1q9p pajeial JO 12U ‘S19sse jenden ut paISaAY
apw-lousid

sjasse 19U sayianoe adk)-ssauisng feoL
palousaIun
1G9p pajejel JO 18U ‘S1Bsse {endeo ui pajsanul
sanianoe adAl-ssauisng

S}aSSe 18U SaNAOR jeuawwanoch ol
pejouIsaiun
poIoUISaY
1q9p palejal JO 19U 'S1asse {ended ut paISaAU
SANIAIOE [BIUBLILIBA0D

89



12261 ¥ES 61 c0ves el Lt 89 9E5 66C LI e €T 199 L1 Z890lEVEL 1T £9'G.0'1.8'0Z GEZZLZ9E L} 71'G6519Z'81
18 ¥60°08Y'Sh €O VoG eI L 88'9£5'66C L} ¥ 2919z 91 ¥y 991 8v1'0g Iy yiieok 0z GG 610°065°91 ¥1€69°0L9'L
cgve6'161 1 g€ ¥02'986 91" LE¥'969 08'209'04L £8'vL1'G8S
oy LSO'YS 00°901'6¥ - 00'¥25'59 00°0¥0'29 0zL2L'S
Z1 6y €99'€8 G2 0¥L 92168 B Gp1'L08'EE Z1 00 S9. 96 Tvez 65 ¥0L OV SLL¥YE L0} Z3GoB LIy 0Ll 2508y 905yl
€2 6580481 £EGEYCLEL 0€916'120°C £2509'801°2 6L L19E V9L C 9L 95V 1EE'2 89EL1 82V ZL961'6YEZ
98 ¥Zs 1EL 1 LeL'LE $909¢ 112 pyzvliil 90°'9Z¥' 602 og'cie'est 162£8'002 ge'€08'9L1
1E0EE'6EL} 20'969'vEQ L 99's51'018'1 61298'966'1 £1GE6'YS6'1 96 ZYL'EELT LLr0¥e'222'e yoE6E'TLL'E
I T
6868264 18 Z6 vOL Y5118 6162961416 68 v6L 959 v6 TZzeeE v el 07 862'€10'G01 V1280686 101 08 EBLLS1 2L
11°229'848C ¥6 L2V 20L'T 22128916 S8 66 1ZEC BEYOZ 9112 g1 660 Gv8'} 08'o0v'6EL't €9'1G9'LLS' L
6y €LL'190'S Ly'€08'TL0'G 06'156'0ZY'S SY'el8'029'G GO'ZEL'GEB'S 1G¥YE0L2'9 11'68€'695'9 12'801'955'9
$2'960'26¥'L 8€'650'815L 68 9EL'EE6' L geZLL'ZIO0'8 06'€9¥'0.9'8 16'LP2'0VL'8 09'899'G15'8 08°200'18Y'8
ZL99v' YLy 10°12926C'E 62'G89'G2S'E 09 ELE'6EL'E seSIT 1LLE 69’ 1EY'Z80'E 0E'EYE'SEE'E y6'68C'VIV'E
presLvibe 26 LSL'8IS'E 16 /€2'280'F 09'6£6'069'Y GG'08E'L06'Y pezec'6es'y 2Z'SL0'LEV'S 62'0.6'89C'G
FAZA2 ATARY £C6LL'6LS T 96'€60'166°CH Lzze6'csy'el pE 19’806 V1 01'019'609'G} Z2Se8'vi0'0L pe11'880'L4
90'82¥'60L'Z 10°185'8YEC 96'192' 55T £6'666'V6E'2 9Z'E56'9LE'T 25'200'29€2 29'Te6'61L'T 6€°100'861'2
X178 2484 60'G8Y'69E'Y 1020 1LY 6G'GGE' VOB ¥ S0'815'9L5'S 16'809'0LL°G yLZ60'LEV'S 28 Ly8'vEY'6
16'68G6'952'L 02°9€6'9£0'8 AR AW A 1G'8€5'100'6 £6'62Y' 018’6 15°161'98€'0L 6v ¥02'S08'0L 11888 PET HL
6£°9€0'LL8'VES G6'00L'6€9'LES Ge'960'LPL'6ES icesp'oLl’iy § LS opL e S Lrogsievi'or § 81°€€9'699'Lv $ LG GEQ'EPY'OY $
[ ——
€002 002 $002 9002 1002 8002 600C 0102
"0E sunf Duipu3 Je9A 1eostd
poypneun
(Bununosoe Jo SISeq enuooe)
siea) (easid Bid 157
sjassy 1IN W sabuey)
HONOWOASTIH 40 dIHENMOL
NOLLYDNG3 40 Quv0E
§ 1834s

Z-r nawxa

senuaaal tweibosd saANDE jewawieact o)
SUOHNGLUILIOD PUB sesb Bunessdo
1q3p uuel-buo; uo 1531
uoneyodsuen ydnd
-s001Ai9s 10} S9BeYD
‘SOINAIOE [EIUBULIBACD
sanuaaay weiboid

sosuadxs apIm-IoUISIp 18101

asuadxe sanapor adAj-ssausng 101
JualyoLUT JSWWNS
AIAIBS POOS

‘sanAoe adAl-ssauisng

sasuadxa sananoe Ewawwsaob @04
1q8p uuay-Buoj us 153131t
vonepodsues hidnd
aoueUAUEW pue suonesado weld
Sa0IAIaS SANEIISIUILDE SSAUISNG pue |gIaue9
$30IAI9S BARBISIUILDE JO0UDS
$30IAI9S PAIRIal UOROMISUL PUB wepms
uomny
-seoneg poddng
uononnsut IR0
uoneonpa [e109ds
1einbay
vononnsuy
SOINANIOR [RIUSLILIGACD
sasuadxa

90



S0015€65 L & _1E08L €692 § TC 060G 66€ § _G9LE9085C § P60.2952€ § _cveegvee § co0l5G6L $ 166592692
16$99'09 sez12'00) €6'818'25 ¥9'9L1'801 Tze95L'612) 91'120'8€ Too08z've) Tgo'gov'se)
11'158'26¥') 99Z6E'EIL'T TV LIOLYYE'E L 1aYZLY'E 92 LZ0'SLY'E 19'%58'928'9 §9'058'612 652981112
58265 16L'L9 GG £C6 €69°2L €L 158¥CY'8L 15266 19% 08 99'8.G 558 v. L£0'696 06 ¥ 016 906 06 22155 €19'96
58266 1619 GG €66 £59'2L €2 158 ¥er 8l 16266 19%'08 981G SGL V8 ¥4 1£069606 ¥¥ 016906 06 22165 €19°96
{o6121) Tse'zeL'801)
00°E€E'0ZE
16°2¥6'298' (9£'619'128)
(00°000'081)
ZLOEVYSY 1EE15'282 66'GL2'€0Z 6v'8LL Y2 12 TTS6YE 1598¥ 122 $£'299'€0E 0L'SY0'9.LE
£L9E9°SL 51258'8Y S9PLY'8SH P LSS'GIY 46'158'805 89°060'29¢€ v 8rz'e6 5082'LS
9L9L1'6¥5 08'016'LZ5 $9'819'655 10°€65'805 15°668'96Y 06°69€'119 09°05¥'698 Z0'¥68'261
GLOSCEIS Y 15968'112'24 £y L1161l 9891 2’1612} 09'28L'9282} ¥6'9¥6'69¢'EY 81 1y9'G62 L} 89921 '969'61
68'28¥'199'C 90°'802'9¥6'E 8LOSLYEL'Y GLP06'IGE'Y 29°661'6LY'Y YE'EPOZ8S'E 0Z 166'ZST'E 14829792'C
00°208'L6¥'15 00°255'9€9'6S 0026018109 00'612'0£8'19 00°601'€02'99 00°/51'€L0'69 00°0£5'206'69 00'615'880°EL
{27°910'861°99) Trr el 00669 (ee iz ey vl Tagysc 188'9L) TGTIoc005 18 (1ESG1 vl ¥8) T6L66C11206) (1€ 560 126'€6)
16 9908 Tevzod) £6818'2S ¥9'9/1'804 ze'95.612) 91 120'8E Too'08z've) Te9'90v'se)
(go'1¥2'852'99) (69°0¥G'0V6'69) (1£°060'08%' L) (05 1£5'686'9L) (ov'155'082°18) (z0car'zyy've)  (6L650'129'06) (£9°'889'G68'€6)
GEZ1969v LY 10°286'59} ‘61 V1 vI8ELE 6 92 '5¥0' ¥B8 61 62 916 80°€Z 51095 0¥ £2 £0'919'90L 64 12 °G8€ 586 02
¥1°025 1£6'Y 86 22P 256 1 £2SEE L0 78°18L9122 Iy'S09¥¥6 | 25 ¥8Y 69E'Z 8IEEHEYEC Y006 E2EZ
1E¥08°12Z 99°£20 642 £9°011'G62 15205%L2 1$°090°66Z £V 6¥6 8YY SLBEL oY 26 106 £EV
00°'EL6'LEY 6L¥26'1S 51966222 88Z9L'IVE 6Z'110'8L 8v'Zes'8re €581y LeoLLYLL
cozvLLISE  §  ESPIYGZYL $ cg1Z9'665's §  BY'915°009't ¢ LLEESl9S $ 19200729t § Oy 0.5'G8LL S [CRYAR-TF S
€002 $002 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0102
"0t Bun( DUIPUT JEBA 1B0S]
paypneun
(Bugunodoe jo SIseq feniooe}
sieoj 1BSE WbiE Ise
s1assy 19N uj sebueyd
HONOHOESTHH JO dIHSNMOL
EAL. T

Z-F Haux3

Sp10981 19MIS|( [9IIN0S

s195se JoU Uy aBURLD BPIM-IOLISID 1E10L
somagoe adA)-sseuisng
SORIADR |EJUBLILIBADD)
syessy jaN uj abueyd

sentaAd |eieuab apim-IoLISIp IR0 L
seqiagoe adAl-ssauisng 1E101
SIgpsues]
sBuLIes JUBULSOAU}
‘samagoe sdAl-ssauisng

SBRIAGOE jEIUeWILIBACD 1101

pajjeuen jueib Auowpny yuewidoieas(l onwouodl N

juesS AQuoyiny juawdoisas( Joued3 TN
sjessy eudeD of jueunsaipy

spoesoid spuog Buipunyay

SUIOOUI SNOBUBIBISIN

sBupes JUBUISBAU]

(siooyos jepads Uey) JeLRo) uoging
PBIOLISES JOU PIE BIEIS PUE |B18pay

jediouud 8IIAIBS 1G8D 10} PRIABY ‘S9XE) Aadid

gasodind jereusl J0) PoIAs| 'S8XE} Kuadoid
soxe]
ISBOIATIOE |EJUBLILIBACD)

3

v 18N U} Yo 18I0 pue s Y jessueg

asuedxe jou SPIM-IDLESID 18101
sogAgoe edAl-sseuisng
SBIIAIOE |EJUBWILIBAOD

snuasay/(esusdxl) 1N

sonueass Wweiboid spm-omsID E10 1
sanueass Wesboid seniAgoe 8dAl-sseuIsng 1E101L
suonnquIuod pue sjuesd Bugesado
JUBLIYOUUT JBURLNG
821AJ8S P00
soo1AI8s J0) sefiieud
‘sogiagoe sdi-ssauisng

91



£9GyeL06'L § 1v2.8'6ES'C § ZYEETYI6E $ G ELGBES Y $ y9'116'0ZE'S $ £e'86C68LY $ £21£6'818C $ 11'918°016°C $

£L8607iy $ cCyp096Z S zzecees & OF \c0'222 § _SEL ez § _186LL6C § 2908.6C $ _181¢ $

CrA A €L79e'eT G ¥6E'L PS5 0LLES vL0 18'SLL'6C 29'981'62 1912

29'Lv5'69C A LA YA LOYYi'9L 98°025'v0T 19'91E'2S

{0z cov'91)

so'lsL'set 0 St sey'vE  § - ¢ oooogsl $ - $ - $ - $ - $

06'9v2 £6v'L $ y1 828 EVCC $ 02 G69'068'E $ vl 2av LZEY $ 62 ¥59'8925 $ 9v'22G65LY $ 19°4y1'68L2 $ yZ ¥6L°016°C $

ZLUAvLEsY') €2 16L'8LY'} 187120'€08 2T°650'G6L 85'6G¢ L9E'} SLELE'6LO') 2022’ L06 Y ¥Z'e60’t

g1'6501 ¢ 160£9'GZ8 ¢ ££€.9'/80°€ S 26'92¥'92SE § LLYBELOBE $ 1L8%1'089°E 65°606'188'L $ 08'6v5'218C $
€002 002 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0102

£-r paux3

"0g aunf bupul Jesai 1e0si-

paupneufn

(Bununoaoe JO SISeq [enuooe payipow)

siea [eostd 1BI3 1Se

‘gpun4 [EIUBLIBACD - saouejeq pund

HONOHOHSTIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOLLYONQ3 40 QYvod

$pJoa81 2SI 192IN0S
saoue(eg pund (€101

spunj [eustuUIA0h Jaulo (I8 [E10L
puny aoes 1qeQd
puny spafosd ended
punj anUsAal |eadsg
:ul papodal ‘PanIasaun
pansasay
SpUN4 [BIUBWUIAA0D) JOUIO IV

puny jesausb (e301
panasasuf
panassy

pun4 (e19uU99)

92



(vz'ZoL'086'L) $9'025°2€9 16'280'890°} ZVIY6'E0E SH062 LES (18°629'1£9) (o1 '¥9€'0L6'}) 99'188'160°}
0¢ L¥9'6aZ 16 ©1 0.6 ¥EC 68 99'G8Y'969'V6 8LGL6'¥0S L6 g 16V 191 °G0L [Ievoeaoeol GC9l9'ie0 il LG P92 €8L°ELL
€0'G01'2E6°C £0'066'€9.C 12116'185°C 9/868'68€C gz 1v6'(8L'T gy ¥89'¥Z6'L GZ'€6EZ6L L G/ 050'0€9'}
00'000'0LL'E 00'000°006'€ 00°000'060'V 00°000'062'Y 00000°G8Y'Y 00'000'62S'€ 00'000'002°€ 00°000'022°€
$6'G9L'VEE'S £9'vZ6'6LL 12°986'79V'L 09'1¥6'Z6LL 06289'62L°} 05'S02'084'2 19°2£6'665°C Gy'006'894°4
L 00E 166'CL $2'662 0EE'SL 15'86¥'¥20'9L 96'729'950'81 9.'900'¥S2'CT GE¥Z6'092'EC 16'196'826°C 59'02.'698'VC
zZ'sL1'988'Y 19782'698'Y 90'889'L¥2'S L9 PP9'60Y'S 80'8L8'EEY'S £9°182'000'9 G9'6YETOE'9 L02Z1'822'9
09'v96'125'9 £9'168'LYS'9 G9'765'6¥6'9 9Z'€TL'148'9 09'6€8°102°L gL ¥6L'89V'L 61€22'G9¢e'L 89°01¥'6€0°L
Z0'92L'STLE 2z 0v8'TL9T 6L 1ov'Tro’e 19°188'8€5'C 16'181'95V'Z 90°096'G95'C 61102069 8£90L1L1LT
6 0vaove’t gy 1£6'928°C g¥'8E2'GE0'E 0L 129'E9V'E 0€£'900'8YS'E 18°180'L55'€ 1G'GLL'EED'E 60 ¥20'8L9'E
08'861'966'8 ZL°66L'0L9'6 09'19Z'8iv'0l 9/'vel'¥99'0L 6.°802°€8E'LL 09'€0€'L90C} 01'9€8'6SPTH 01'G68'080°CL
90'92¥'60L'C 10°186'8VET 96'L92'¥8S'T ££'G66'V6EC 9T'€6S'9LET 75°200'L9€C 297E6'6LL'C 6€°/00'861°C
19ELEBIVE 68 LYT L95'E 16655'289'C 010G PPLE 18°€91°0S0'Y £0'910'91C'Y L9 ¥YY'STo'Y 6E'EEL'GZ6'9
£6°09€'662'S 01 ¥08'GE6'S £0'8€£'66Z°9 g9e'e16'v29'9 86'€£6'G88'9 91'982'29¢'L £9298'GLL'L £9'G19°095°'8
g1'802'€L¥'9C 9£'268'100'82 ¥ \GL'Y0E'62 L¥'169'798'6C 19YS9'vL6°0E g¢169'€22CE P $59'999'EE 66'L10'9LV'CE
90'GVL'G8Z ES 95 /6v /19868 16896 ¥2.L'G6 06226808'L8 e Iv1 86660, OVOL 'IG1'g0L Gl ¢Se'160°601 6£9vL'GLE VL
e ovo'cIE’ ) GeEyY'GL8t G0'69¢'820°C 68255858} Ge102'TLLT 09'128'156't Z9°62G'0£0°C 1E€61°946'9
€91V 951 VT 28'890'661°9C 29'61.'66892 00°192'6€9'22 ££'6LL'020'LE GE'0LL'E0S1E 11066628 L€ 9¥'89.L'9vL 'O
99'€Z1 208 Z9LLPLLE op'961'699 00°088°L62 £9°0vL'SOV 16'686°15C 97 £0E'EEE GEEVE'6LY
£1°9€9'GL G1'758'8Y GO PLY'8SE $6'165'GLY G6'168'80S 85°060°C9¢ 8y 8vZ'66 G0'8.2'LS
¥ LGO'VS $9°98€'EL 62629 00901 '6¥ 00€8L'1S 00$25'59 00°0¥0'29 0z L2L'S
949L1'6¥S 08°016'L2S $9'819'655 L0°€6G'806 1566896V 06'69¢'LL9 09°05Y'698 Zo'y68°2st
00'799'0£9'96 $ ocoezyeegod  § 00 100'62£'69 $ oogsY'sr0’l9  $ ooogy'ZYeILS  00°8EY \Ge'eL$  000ELLI'EL $ 0028£'916'9L%

£002 $00Z 5002 9002 1002 9002 8002 0102
"g¢ eunr buipu3l JeaA 1eosid
paupneun
(Bununoaoe Jo SISeq erusoe paipous)
sseaA (eostd b3 15
‘SpuN 4 [EIUBLILIBACD - sasuejeg pung W sabBueyd
HONOYORSTIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOlLYona3 40 qyvog
1 199US

-1 Hqiyx3

sainyipuadxa (1apun) JoA0
senuaaal Jo (Aouatoya() sseox3
sanppuadxs (g0 L
sofireyn 19410 pue s8]
{edpuud
a018s 1980
fepno ended
syeuaq sakoidw3
uonepodsue) dnd
aoueusjuiBw pUE suoesado Jueid
S80IAIOS SAIBASIUIUPE SSBUISNG pue [2J9U80)
$a0IA9S SAljRASIUILIPE [00UDS
$90IAI9S Paje|a) UoHONUISUl pue Wepnis
uomny
‘saoneg poddng
uonsnsul JBYO
UOHONASUI UOYEINDPD enads
uononssu) Jeinbey
uononSyYy
sainyipuadx3

SaNUBAS) {2101
5921N0S |BJopad
sa2UN08 NBIS
SNOBUEaYSIN
sBujues sl
s08) uogepodsuel |
sabieys uoningt
Anopxey

sanuaAdY

93



%208 %ES 'L %91°L %¥6'9 %GY'9 %ZV'S %09'v

%lEY

Tz 201'086'L)$ ¥8'926'2€9 $ G 0oL VEY'L § Z108Z'v29 $ oresyezs $ (e €19'1€9)$ Tovvoe'0L6'L) $

88'188'160°L $

- - Y08, 99¢ GocEe0ee (ge¢bL 801 - - .
.aw.m\.c,nv Nmm.omoi G151 v.mv& 061 S\.m& awwm,mmv
0SELV'E 69°0£0'V GL'GLLGLY 06'Liv'EY 19°91£2S
(96°1L1) 00°€E€'0ZE (ge'z6L'801)
- $ - ¢ 000SY'99E $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
£002 002 G002 9002 12002 8002 6002 0102
Tg¢ aunp buipud JesA 1easid4
paypneun
(Bupunoaoe Jo sIseq [enooe peyipow)
sieop Bosid bz Ise]

‘S$pun 4 |EIUBWIUIAA0D - saouejeg pung ui sabueyd

HONOYOESTIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOLLYONGE 40 aQuvos

Zi93us
- naux3

sp1023l oHISI() 192IN0S

sainypuadxa jejdesuou
jo0 sbejuaoied e se 80IAISS oz}

seouejeq puny ut abueyd 19N

(sasn) saainos Bupueuy JBUI0 el
N0 sigjsuel )
Ui SJBjsuel ]
syuelb Auouyiny juawdoeas( Jruoucd3 TN
(peeBpng-uou) sasES) fende)d
(sasn) saoinos BujouRuld o

94



ye'ZLL LS
LZ'¥6E'CY

16899111
81°800'661
1£°128'991
vL V9L YL

GE'EV6'8Cl
y€'86Y'Z81
1€°901'9¥C
60°¥96'0S

ENEEREN

S-r naxg

$

9,'788'GL1
£1'890°€LL
¥6'v19'9S
60'90G'06
75'662°C)
1L0L2'1E
Gy 0EY'CL
G5'0ZY'68
00°118'8L

00°'066'20}

0000Z'89

00°€v1'6S

00'800'09

09'L66'V9

¥G'0¥Z'L6

1G'6EL°18

00'968'68 00°000'GL
00°ZLE'G8

gLzigsy $ 00289'%9 §

spunjod

sjejusy HESEY

j0 9les

50'8.Z'LS 02'12L'S

8y'8v2'66 00°0+0'29
85°060'29€ 00'#25'G9
6'258'80S 00'€82'1S
6. 'GET'EIE 00'901'6¥
06° €YY ¥GL G6'262'8E
GZ'6LE'SY ¥9'98E'EL
¥6'68€'G9 oV’ L50'VS
69'€8E' 11T 89'GZE'V.
g/'101'082 § BESTYS

IEEIE] GoREpodsuel L
peypneun

(6ununoaoe Jo SISeq [enode payipow)

sieoA |EDSI4 us] 1se
a2.nog Aq anusAay [B207 JOYI0 - Pun 4 je18uan

HONOYOASTIIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOLLYONA3 40 QuvOod

20168251
09°05¥'698
06'69¢€'1L29
15'668'96¥
10°€65'80S
$8'819'GSS
09°016'L2S
9,'9/1'6VS
8¥'960' L6V
¢ 6L8VL°LLS

TUORIN L

LEYV6'L6G

Yy LOv'PEE’L
66'0L¥'9TE L
6.290'L0%"1
GE'€G0'G9L° L
v.1€9'1G6

90°'061'626

66'8EY'GOL°L
Zv'566'861°L
01'82€'200°1

[——

1ejol

sp10%81 Jo1ISIQ 1924N0S

0L0¢
6002
800¢
1002
9002
S00¢
$00¢
€002
200¢

$ 1002

1.I|l.l|.|..
0€ aunf papul
JeaA [eosid

95



O
Jossassy xe} fediduny :a2nog (o>

080T $00'ZL'PZE'S 1£E'119'6E8'E 1E0'¥SL'L 00€'158'129'E ool'gZL'sy 006'62Y'CEL 009'L65'€92 002'166'79 008'60£'0L2°C 00L'¥0V'0S 0102
616'} 559'€00'082°9 161'G56'68L'C 160'1LY'L ooL'yey'ZeL'e 006'S1E'9Y 009'SER'1EL 009'€22'992 00Z'VEV' YO 00Z' LL6'LIT'E 002'869'SS 6002
696'} Z06'9L2'0VL'9 296'9LL'LEL'E 295'168°L 00v'188'62L'C 006'sLE'OY 009'60L'IEL 000'¥00' LT 001'2v2'e9 006'CY1'0SL'E 006'6L0'S9 9002
666°4 ye6'219'4LL'S 511'268'€69'E Gi1'v89's 000'891'689'C 001’28 L ¥ 00¥'0ZV'0EL 00Z'vE6'982 009'96¥°'19 008'89L'260'C 006'€2L'LL 1002
9064 $G6'oLL'B8L'S 285'cYL'ZE'E 999'9LE'S 00L'v08'729'E 001'YOL'TY 00Z'€19'CEL 005'651'€92 00v'150'59 00v'Z18'1P0'C 001'¥90'8S 9002
6e9'l 12e'Te IPLY $os'Ove'€09'e yi1'9LE'0} 06€'V9Z'E65°C 001'¥$Z'y 00L'096'1EL 000'€61'842 060'€1€'S9 009'27LZ'1E0'E 006'0L2' 7Y S00Z
8Lt 90.'660'S81'Y 068'920'285'€ 08Y'08L'4 00V'9EZ'0LS '€ 000'666'L¥ 00e'6ZL'1EL 002'508'04C 00L'vLL'Y9 006'182'920'C 006'061'GE $00Z
€99l cpr'eLLbLLE OLY'0E0'ZES'E olg'8iy'vt 009'119'L1G'E 000'666'LY 00L'1LO'VEY 00L'08L'EYT 00v'562'29 00Y'Z16'€00'E 00¥'965'¥E £00Z
evL'l $99'Z1§'VEC'E 68€'069'2L0'E sgy'zez'cl 006'€0¥'650'€ 000'LL0°ZY 00g'v8L'YLE 000'LL5'¥0Z 008'Z80°€S 004'€06'€09'C 001'6L6'0Y 2002
058’1 ove'Lyi'ee0'e $ 009'861'€68'2 $ ooL'ers'TiS 005'569'089C § 000's69'0r $ ooeg'see’zor § 005'6¥Y'LL $ oov'1L8'es $ 006'150'992'C $ oov'zsz'vy $ 1002
2ed T enEA ajaexe | somn Mand aneA Jswuedy feusnpul [212,9WWoD uised {enuapisay pueT] WedeA te
Xe} ooUds (pezienb3 Aunod) uonenieA 19N possassy B0l 1eqwaseq
popu3

P840 BICL fendy polewns3
JBOA 18ISt

paypneun
sieaA |BOSI4 USL 1SET
‘Apadoid algexey jo anjeA [EmdY pajewSa Pue ANEA PISSISSY

HONOHUOBSTUH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOILYDNA3 40 QUvVos

g~ Haux3



10398}{09 Xe] jedidjun| :82iN0S

0102
6002
8002
1002
9002
S002
$00¢
£00¢
200¢
1002

690t 6%G°0 0.¥0 0602 9z10 y6'L

686°C 1660 66¥°0 6.6} FANRY Ly8L

v167¢C 9GS0 6vv0 696'L ayi’0 g8l

116'¢C 1€6°0 18¥°0 656°L 1810 8L’}

198°¢C €160 rA Al 906°L $81°0 zelt

18.L°C 0060 tAZAY 6€8°L G8L’o 6oL

1297C WAAY ¥6€°0 z29L'L 981’0 9.6’}

906'¢ 6y¥0 ¥6€°0 €991 8810 GLY')

109¢ £8v’o GLE0 6¥L'L © 1220 1 TASH

96.L°C $ 0660 $ 9G6e'0 $ o8t $ 6520 $ 1691 $

sy Aunod “Rijediouniy ajey xejl 99IAI9S ajey dised

xe | Buiddepor0 jo0YU9s 199q uonebiqao

pue 81 18101 jr:1ile] {eiouas)
el

sajey buiddepsao 31ey] 10911Q 101IsIg 100UdS

paypneuf

(anjea passasse JO 00 1¢ 40d ajel)
siea ) |eosld uaj iset
sajey xe) Apedoid puiddejieaQ pue 122110

HONOYOE8STIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOILYONQA3 40 Qivod

L-ruquyx3

I JequiadeQ
papul
1B {BoSid

97



jossossy xe] [edioluniy :921nos

%000 - %Z6'€ 00c'cLz'6s) $ eyl
%€EZ 0 00€'229'8 971 ‘4109 Mooug 890y
%120 000'005'0} ‘90ssy suapies ybnoJogsiiH
%EL0 002’0282t d1'anua) ubnologsiiiH
%GE 0 001'292'El uonepunod ule4 sayna
%GE 0 000'0S€'El $9]RI00SSY USpIED) UBWHA9Y
%.€°0 00L'vZL'vl 971 Med ubnoogsiitH
%EY 0 000'60%'9} UONBIDOSSY JAUI0D S,UOSISN
%.L¥'0 oov'sLl'sl *Ju| UBWIBI0D B AKOSY
%190 ooo_ \.Nm.mw .EOO co_ww_Ewcm‘.._. uiajseq Sexs |
- %¥L'0 002’6478 $ apeuswold ybnoiogsiiH
anieA Umwmmwm< aneA anjeA v@wwmww( anieA .om aunf papul Jes A 1eosid
19N 1pusid Ummmmmm< 18N uo_bw_D nmwmmwwd.
1ejol 40 % a|gexel {2101 40 % a|gexeL
0002 0102
paypneufn

g-r nqiux3

oBy siea) ual pue.leajs jusimny
siokedxe] Apadoid rediouiid

HONOHOASTIIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOLLYONQa3 40 qivod

98



10393]j09 xe) [edidlUny :82iN0g

%82 66 06'€50'822'G}} %82 66 06°€50'8Z2'SLL GO V€Z'TGO'OLL 6002
%26 66 G1'995'2€0' V1L 00°9S5'€Y6 %6066 G1'0L0'680°CLL  YOL6Z'ETLVLL 8002
%06 66 €16LL'E69 LLL 6y 1ov'98L'L %886 $9°/G0'00G'0LL  86°E6L'66L'LLL 1002
%E6'66 oY 9¥Z'690'G0} ¥9°'96€'V.18 %0166 0l'6v8'V6L' V0L ¥6'86C'6EL'GOL 9002
%G6'66 6£90L'LL6°00} ZT€G9'9EL'L %ES 86 L1°€S0'1¥8'66 €5°8¥1'020°'L0L 5002
%.6'66 8.1°65¥'GOE V6 8. 1Zv'928 %6066 00'8€0'6€5°C6 00°200'68€ ¥6 ¥00Z
%0000} GE 9YZ'92E'68 S£°000'L¥6 %G6'86 00'9¥2'G8E'88 00°L2Z'61€'68 €002
%88'86 1L'€21'881°08 - %8886 1L€21'881°08 88'G/8'Z60'18 2002
%9.°86 00 ¥S¥'VEL'EL - %9. 86 00 ¥SP'YEL'EL 00°GLL'259'VL 1002
%0. 86 00°81€'800'69 $ - $ %0L 86 00'8LE'800'69 § 00 VEO'VLE'69 S 0002
>>®..~ junowy SIEes A ucmswmmnsw >>®.._ junowy JesS A [eosid oy} ¢ 1€ ._ODEQOOO
J0 mmmucmo.an_ 4]} SUOI108110D JO Ommucwo._wn_ 1o} poaiAaT] saxej pspul
aj1eQ 0} SUONdB|I0D [BI0L Ao 9y} Jea A [eosid
10 JE9A [BOSI4 BU} UIUNM PSJOBII0D
paypneun

6-r nax3

siea eosid ualise’

SUO1}29]|0D PUE S3IAST XBL Apadoid

HONOYOLSTIH 40 dIHSNMOL

NOLLYONQA3 40 qivod

99



€18 %¢€8'} 000'0.G°LE 000'045°L€
968 %L1'C 000'06.L°v€ 000°06.L'¥€
G66 %LEC 000'066'L€ 000'066°LE
860'L %0.LC GEg'Zye LY Ges'L 000'GEE’ LV
rAXALY YARS 68.'896'GY 68.°'8vlL 000'028'G¥
66e'L %YS€ 961'G65°0S 961'68¥y 00004 1°0G
16¥'1 %00V 0€S'/L¥9'SS 0€G'LV6 000'00L'¥S
966’} %LY'Y ¥9€'v61'65 ¥8€'v68 000'009°8S
969°L %E8' Y 891°2/2'€9 891296 000'01€'29
ASTAN 3 %.L9°€ zsL'oee'sy  $ 2GL'90v' LS 000'v2S'vY
eyde) Jad atodu} 1PLIsiq B0 L s9sea] spuog
|jeuosiad jended uonebao
jo abeuasiad |eJausn)

ol-r nqx3

SBNIAIDY [EIUSWUIBA0D

pajipneun

sieaj |eosSi4 uay ise

adK} Aq 1q2@ BuipueisingQ jo soley

HONOY¥OESTIIH 40 dIHSNMOL

NOILYONQA3 40 qivos

0102
6002
8002
1002
9002
5002
¥00¢
€002
2002
1002

.Om aunf
papu3
JeaA
|eosi

100



€18 %280 000'0.G'L€ 000'05°1€ 0102

101

968 %<¢6°0 000'06L'tv€ 000'06.'v€ 6002
G66 %20’} 000'066°L€ . 000'066°LE 800¢
860°} L YAN? 000'GEE’ IV 000'GEE' LY 200¢
8zl %9¢'L 000°028'SY 000'028'SY 9002
Gye'l %6¢€’L 00004 1°0S 000°0L1°0S G00¢
99v'L %ES L 000'00L'tS 000'00L'¥S 002
Z2.8°) %99'1L 00000985 000'009'8S €002
0.9} %€0'C 000'0L€'29 000'01£C9 2002
€1zl $ %G9’} 000'v2S'vy S - $ 000'¥2S'ty  $ 1002
enden Jod Apedold BuipueisinQ suononpag spuog uonebiqo ‘0g aunp
jo anfeA 199 pspuog |eiou9n) pspul
s|gexe] [eny [e1au9a9) 18N JeaA
jo abejusdiad eosid

BulpuelsINO 1920 Papuog [e1ausd
paypneun
sied A jeosid ua) IseT

Bujpuelsing 1qaQ papuog [eJaud9 19N jo soney

HONOHUOASTIIH 40 dIHSNMOL
NOILYONA3 40 QYVOoS

Li-r naqiux3



Exhibit J-12

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of December 31, 2009
Unaudited

Net Direct Debt of School District
as of December 31, 2009 $ 32,210,000.00

Net Overiapping Debt of School District:
Township of Hillsborough {100%) $ 15,195,577.83
County of Somerset - Township's share (9.4151%) 11,061,202.19
Utility Authority - Township's share (100%) 3,674,034.99

29,930,815.01

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
as of December 31, 2009 $ 62,140,815.01

Source: Township of Hillsborough Chief Financial Officer and Somerset County Treasurer's Office.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF HILLSBOROUGH

Insurance Schedule
As of June 30, 2010
Unaudited

Package Policy:
Blanket Real and Personal Property
Electronic Data Processing Hardware
Electronic Data Processing Software
Audio Visual Equipment
Crime Coverage:
Faithful Performance
Money and Securities
General Liability
Automobile

New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group:
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liabilty

Utica:
Commercial Umbrella Liability

Fireman's Fund:
Excess Umbrella Liabilty

Bollinger Insurance Company:
Student Accident Insurance

Chubb Insurance Co.:
Environmental Liabilty

Selective Insurance Co.:
Surety Bonds:

Board Secretary/Business Administrator
Treasurer of School Moneys

Source: District records.
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$

Coverage

205,967,987
1,735,115
89,755
24,100
100,000
10,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

2,000,000

10,000,000

50,000,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

450,000
450,000

Exhibit J-20

$

Deductible

1,000

500/1000

10,000
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T M. Vrabel & Associates, LLC
Accountants and Auditors

Timothy M. Vrabel, RMA, PSA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Hillsborough School District
County of Somerset, New Jersey

We have audited the basic” financial statements of the Township of Hillsborough School District as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2010. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Township of Hillsborough School District’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Township of Hillsborough School District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough School District’s internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

170 ‘East Main Street

P.O. ‘Box 541

Denville, NJ 07834

973-625-2920 Fax: 973-625-8733
Email: tmorabeldoc@optonline.net
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Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township of Hillsborough School District’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Township of Hillsborough School District
and the New Jersey Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Timothy M. Vrabel
Public School Accountant
License No. CS000698

Yo
Chris C. W. Hwang

Certified Public Accountant
License No. CC033704

September 14, 2010
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T M. Vrabel ¢ Associates, LLC
Accountants and Auditors

Timothy M. Vrabel, RMA, 25

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 04-04

The Honorable President

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Hillsborough School District
County of Somerset, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Township of Hillsborough School District with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
and the New Jersey State Aid/Grants Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal and state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. Township of Hillsborough School District’s major federal and state
programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor’s Results Section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
" questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major federal and state programs is the responsibility of Township of Hillsborough School District’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Township of Hillsborough School District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing_Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department
of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations; and New Jersey Office of Management and Budget Circular Letter 04-04 Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey
OMB’s Circular Letter 04-04 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Township
of Hillsborough School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our

audit does not provide a legal determination on Township of Hillsborough School District’s compliance with those
requirements.

170 East Main Street

P.O. ‘Box 541

Denville, N1 07834

973-625-2920 ‘Fax: 973-625-8733
Fmail- tmyrabeldvc@optonline.net
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In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Township of Hillsborough School District, in the County of Somerset,
State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to

each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Township of Hillsborough School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Township of Hillsborough School
District’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal or state program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and
New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Township of Hillsborough School District’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Hillsborough’s School District School District internal control over
compliance.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE OPTION #1 - NO SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro! does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Township of Hillsborough School

District, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

LA Vol

Timothy M. Vrabel
Public School Accountant
License No. CS000698

WA G

Chris C. W. Hwang
Certified Public Accountant
License No. CC033704

September 18,2010
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

K-5
Sheet !
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all
federal and state programs of the Township of Hillsborough Board of Education. The Board of Education
is defined in Note [:B. to the Board’s basic financial statements. All federal awards and state financial
assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial

assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes 1:E and
Note |'F. to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in the schedules is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund
to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44 2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not
recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid payments in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or
more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.

118



Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

K-5
Sheet 2
BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010
(CONCLUDED)

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(196,197.00) for the
general fund and $(184,101.92) for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary
Information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $3,461,634.02 $29,718,186.88 $33,179,820.90
Special Revenue Fund 3,114,519.29 36,098.58 3,150,617.87
Debt Service Fund 992 .483.00 992.,483.00
Food Service Fund 406.520.34 27.387.58 433.907.92
Total Awards and $6,982,673.65 $30,774,156.04 $37,756,829.69

Financial Assistance

Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.

Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions
represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the district for post-retirement medical benefits and
the normal and accrued liability pension costs for the year ended June 30, 2010. TPAF Social Security
Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social security
contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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Sheet 1

BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Part | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section

A) Type of auditor’s report issued:

B) Internal Control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be material
weaknesses?

C) Noncompliance material to basic

financial statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

D)
E)

)

G)

H)

D)

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major
programs

Internal Control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 (section .510 (a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)
84.394

84.027A

84.391
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Unqualified

_yes X no

__yes X ___none reported

_yes X _ no

$ 300,000.00

X yes no
Unqualified
yes X _no
yes X__none reported
yes X _ no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
ARRA Education Stabilization Fund

I.D.E.A. Part B. Basic

ARRA LD.E A. Part B, Basic




BOARD OF EDUCATION

K-6
Sheet 2

TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2010

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Financial Assistance Section

)

K

L)

M)

N)

0)

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A
Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor’s report on compliance for
major programs.

Internal Control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with N.J. OMB
Circular 04-047

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s)

10-495-034-5120-078

10-495-034-5120-014

10-495-034-5120-089

10-495-034-095-002

10-495-034-5120-125
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$_851,199.06

X yes no

Unqualified

_yes_X no

yes___X _none reported

_yes__X __no

Name of State Program

Equalization Aid

Transportation Aid

Special Education Aid

Reimbursed T.P.A..F. Social Security

Contributions

Debt Service Aid
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(CONTINUED)

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

al weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, materi
ported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government

the basic financial statements that are required to be re
Auditing Standards.

Not Applicable
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Sheet 4

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

(CONTINUED)

Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

part 3 — Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial

1 weaknesses, and instances of noncomplance, including

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, materia
state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and
New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP_OF HILLSBOROUGH
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S.
OMB Circular A-133 (section .315 (a) (b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Not Applicable
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